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Financial Summary
BB E

SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

miuplRm 5 a2 5 BERA

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BEREER RIEREER B
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“EZ-Rf —E-NFE ZE-IF —T-NF ZE-IF —T@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT T BETT
Hong Kong B8 17,474 26,767 16,827 62,337 34,301 89,104
Mainland China FEA 11,341 15,958 - - 11,341 15,958
Total Bz 28,815 42,725 16,827 62,337 45,642 105,062
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGYI
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five

years.
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Financial Summary

M E

A

Financials (HK$ Million) MBER (BREET) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—®-1f —T-mF —T-=Ff —F--F —T——F
Total assets BEE 513 509 275 186 410
Total liabilities #afE 727 111 85 34 87
Total equity BiEs (214) 398 190 152 323
Non-controlling interests FE 70 ©) ©) ") 40
Shareholders’ funds BEES (284) 407 199 159 283
Share capital e
- in number (Million) —#8 (AEK) 3,305 3,305 2,375 2,375 2,375
- in value (2012-2013: HK$0.01 per -YE(ZF——Fz-_T-=F:
share, 2011: HK$0.05 per share) FRE®0ITL 2B ——F:
HkB%0.057) 33 33 24 24 119
Revenue KA 29 43 67 323 392
(Loss)/profit attributable to ARRIREREA
equity holders of the Company B (B8),/ &7 (724) (140) (30) (24) 148
Per Share Basis (HK cents) BRER (BL)
(Loss)/earnings - Basic (B8B)/BF-EX (21.92) (4.47) (1.27) (1.03) 6.3
- Diluted o D (21.92) (4.49) 1.27) (1.03) 6.3
Dividends 8 - - - 46~ 13.6 ™
Net (liability) asset value (excluding (BB EEFE
non-controling interests) (MBIt L) (8.6) 12.3 8.4 6.7 1.9
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2012, the management implemented a Mimd: B#EZZE—-—F=A=t+—HLEFERN EEE
capital reorganisation whereby the Company reduced the authorised and BEREARNEMR Bt ARREREIBAE RE #
issued share capital through reduction in nominal value of the authorised TR AN B 8 IR A 150.047T 2 75 =R 9 Bl HIRUS B8
and issued share capital to the extent of HK$0.04 per share amounting to 140,000,000t &5 #95,004,0007T Z VA TE K& B 31T
HK$140,000,000 and HK$95,004,000 respectively. N
* The dividend per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 represented - BHE-ZT——F=-A=+—RHILFEZ2ERREA
special dividend of HK4.6 cents per share paid for the year. FREXFERABNWZERIRRE -
o The dividend per share for the year ended 31 March 2011 represented b HEZZ——F=A=+—RLFEZ2ERRER

special dividend of HK13.6 cents per share paid for that year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seeking early opportunities with
insight, pursuing excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead
innovatively”, all over the years, we have all along been adhering to the
industry intrinsic value as the core of our investment philosophy. We
believe all investment values are built on the growth and success of
business operation. We applied the perfect investment evaluation and
management system to select and invest in enterprises with higher
growth potential, and had firmly carried out the operation based on
the industry’s own development pattern. Meanwhile, we also worked
closely with the management teams of prominent enterprises, working
together hand in hand to maximize our own investment value through
the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continued to move forward dependably in
achieving to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and
become a professional investment institute with international
competitiveness focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from
our existing securities trading, loan financing and food and beverages
and businesses, the Group established a joint venture company during
the year to develop and operate the financial leasing business and loan
financing business in Hong Kong and Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
cooperation zone in Shenzhen, both parties had invested a total of
RMB200,000,000.

Furthermore, the Company started to acquire further interests in
Elemental Minerals Limited (‘Elemental”) from last year. As at the
date of this annual report, the Group is interested in approximately
18.44% of the issued share of Elemental. The Company still affirms
its commitment in investing in Elemental and the Sintoukola Project.
The Company will continue its discussion with Elemental regarding the
possibility of other investment options.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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In the past year, besides investing a lot of time in exploring the
acquisition of Elemental proactively, the management team of the
Company paid numerous visits to different regions in China, North
America and Africa to explore and research other investment
opportunities in internet finance and clear energy and other mining
industry projects, as well as investments in loan business, etc. The
Company is confident regarding the prospect of such investment
projects. We will notify our shareholders as soon as possible should
any important information is available.

The substantial loss of the Company during the year, which was
mainly attributable to the fair value loss of derivate financial liabilities on
convertible bonds of HK$600,000,000 to be issued subsequent to the
year calculated according to the accounting standard, did not have any
effect on the cash outflow of the Group. The remaining operations of
the Group also maintained at a reasonable level.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEY BEYEY

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations during the year
under review amounted to HK$29 million or HK$14 million less than
that during the previous year. There was a loss for the year attributable
to the Company’s owners of HK$724 million (2014: HK$140 million)
which includes a fair value loss on derivative financial liabilities
amounted to HK$619 million (2014: HK$84 million), loss arising from
changes in fair value of held for trading investments amounted to
HK$99 million (2014: nil) and the share-based payment expenses of
HK$27 million (2014: HK$15 million).

The basic and diluted loss per share on ongoing operations was
HK21.915 cents, compared with loss per share of HK4.471 cents last
year, while the overall loss per share for the year was HK21.920 cents
(2014: HK4.486 cents).

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The continuing and discontinued food and beverages segment
achieved a total revenue of HK$28 million during the year under
review. This was 57% lower than the amount for last year. The
segment reported a profit of HK$1 million for the current year (2014:
loss of HK$7 million). Out of the total revenue, HK$17 million (2014:
HK$62 million) was contributed by the discontinued operations of the
restaurants and bars and kiosks of the Group which are operated by
3 subsidiaries (“World Pointer Group”). The remaining revenue of
HK$11 million (2014: HK$1 million) was contributed by the restaurant in
Beijing, PRC that was acquired on 1 January 2014.

As of 31 March 2015, the Group operated a company (“Beijing
Restaurant”) which is engaged in catering services including food and
beverage in Beijing, PRC. The Beijing Restaurant offers luxury Chinese-
style cuisine.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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SECURITIES TRADING BUSINESS

During the year, the Group has maintained actively in the securities
trading business. All the securities traded are shares listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This
segment recorded a realized gain on investments at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$12 milion (2014: HK$12 million) and reported
a loss of HK$90.5 milion (2014: a gain of HK$12.7 million) during
the year under review due to an unrealised loss on investments of
securities.

TRADING OF WINE

In order to diversify the food and beverages business, the Group had
purchased certain quantities of fine wines amounted to HK$7 million.
The stocks will be offered to sell when the market prices are favorable
such that the Group can obtain a good return on the trading. At
present, the stocks are kept in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

LOAN FINANCING

As the Group had surplus funds, in order to earn a higher interest
income compared with the interest that may be earned by making
Hong Kong dollar time deposits with banks in Hong Kong, the
Group has advanced monies to independent third parties, which are
unsecured and the interest rates on the loans receivable are raising
from 10% to 24% per annum (2014: 5.6% to 30% per annum).

During the year, the interest income from provision of loan financing
amounted to HK$17 million as compared to that of last year of HK$26
million.

METAL TRADING

During the year under review, the Group has operated metal trading
through a wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC. The revenue from metal
trading was amounted to HK$1 milion (2014: HK$15 million). The
goods traded were mainly steel and its components for construction
purpose. The Group considered that such metal trading could enhance
revenue generation in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EE RS W R

CONNECTED TRANSACTION - PROPOSED ISSUE
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 28 June 20183, after trading hours, Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon”), the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company, as the subscriber and the Company
as issuer entered into a subscription agreement (the “Wincon
Subscription Agreement”) in respect of the issue of and subscription
for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount not
exceeding HK$620,000,000 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.33
per conversion share and the warrants in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$155,000,000 at an exercise price of HK$0.35 per
warrant share, respectively (the “Proposed Issue of the New Wincon
Convertible Bonds”). On 12 December 2014, Wincon had confirmed
to the Company in writing that it would not exercise or transfer any of
the warrants which may be issued pursuant to the Wincon Subscription
Agreement if such warrants are issued to it, and it would not pursue
any action against the Company for damages or other remedies if the
Company does not issue such warrants to it. In view of such written
confirmation provided by Wincon, the Company would not seek to
issue the warrants as contemplated under the Wincon Subscription
Agreement. The Wincon Subscription Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, including the allotment and issue of the
conversion shares under a specific mandate of the Company, were
approved by the Independent Shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 31 December 2014.

The estimated net proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds (after
deducting the fees and expenses) will be approximately HK$619.5
million. The total net proceeds are originally intended to be used for
funding the partial payment of the proposed offer or other possible
further investments. Although the proposed offer subsequently lapsed
on 31 March 2014 and it might no longer be necessary for Wincon to
maintain its status as the controlling shareholder following the lapse of
the another proposed issue of the convertible bonds and the warrants,
as the Shares have been suspended for trading since 2 July 2014, it
is difficult for the Company to raise such substantial fund from third
party investors through placing or issue of convertible notes without a
prevailing trading price for pricing reference. As Wincon is still willing
to inject such a substantial funding to the Company, the Directors
consider that it is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
to capture this funding so as to fuel the future development of the
Group.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The estimated net proceeds of the Proposed Issue of the New Wincon
Convertible Bonds (after deducting the fees and expenses) will be
approximately HK$619.5 million, which are intended to be used as
to approximately HK$472.5 million for funding the new financing and
financial leasing business of the Group, as to approximately HK$60
million for the acquisition of further Elemental Shares and as to HK$87
million for other possible future investments.

On 8 January 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 8 January 2015, the Company and Wincon entered into a letter
of extension to extend the closing date from 8 January 2015 to 8
July 2015 (or such later date as parties thereto may agree) (the “New
Closing Date”). The remaining convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 as contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement will be subscribed by Wincon on or before the New Closing
Date.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Independent
Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 19 March 2015,
the closing date was extended to 8 July 2015.

During the year, the net proceeds from the issue of the convertible
bonds are approximately HK$19.5 million, in which approximately
HK$10 million was used to finance the financing business of the Group
and approximately HK$10 million was used for the acquisition of further
Elemental Shares (as defined below). The Directors confirmed that
the net proceeds from the issue of the convertible bonds have been
applied in accordance with its intended uses.

On 7 May 2015, 60,606,060 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 8 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 9 June 2015,
90,909,090 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 16 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 17 June 2015,
90,909,090 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 23 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 24 June 2015,
121,212,121 Shares has been converted by Wincon.
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Man}igement Discussion and Analysis
EEEERESN

On 25 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

Details of the Proposed Issue of the New Wincon Convertible Bonds
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28
June 2013, 19 July 2013, 30 August 2013, 30 September 2013,
14 November 2013, 31 December 2013, 28 February 2014, 24
April 2014, 30 April 2014, 30 June 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
December 2014, 8 January 2015, 16 January 2015, 19 March 2015,
8 June 2015, 16 June 2015 and 23 June 2015 respectively and the
circulars of the Company dated 15 December 2014 and 2 March 2015
respectively.

THE EARLY REDEMPTION FOR ELEMENTAL
CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND FURTHER
ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN ELEMENTAL

Pursuant to the Dingyi Convertible Note Facility entered by the
Company and Elemental on 1 July 2013 (as defined and mentioned
with details in the announcements of the Company dated 13 August
2013, 12 September 2013, 15 October 2013, 15 November 2013,
23 December 2013, 31 December 2013, 22 January 2014, 28
February 2014, 30 April 2014, 19 May 2014, 20 June 2014, 30 June
2014, 30 September 2014, 14 November 2014 and 31 December
2014 respectively and the circular of the Company dated 9 January
2015 (the “Elemental Lead Investment Announcements”)), the
Company agreed to make a lead investment in Elemental to provide
Elemental with interim working capital for its business. On 22 January
2014, Elemental had drawn the Dingyi Convertible Note Facility for an
aggregate amount of AUD10 million (approximately HK$70.7 million),
following the satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the Dingyi
Convertible Note Facility. Up to 29,351,335 new shares of Elemental
(“Elemental Shares”) will be allotted and issued if all of the Elemental
Convertible Notes subscribed by Elemental are converted.
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Elemental is an advanced mining exploration and development
company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. It is currently
developing the Sintoukola potash project located in the Republic of
Congo.

On 16 May 2014, the Company received an early redemption notice
(the “Early Redemption Notice”) from Elemental in accordance with
the Dingyi Convertible Note Facility pursuant to which Elemental had
given notice to the Company that after the expiration of 30 days from
the date of the Early Redemption Notice, it would redeem 10,000,000
Elemental Convertible Notes and pay the amount outstanding on those
notes together with any interest accrued up to the date of the Early
Redemption Notice.

On 20 June 2014, the Company received from Elemental a sum of
AUD10.3 million (approximately HK$75.1 million), being the amount
outstanding on those notes together with the interest accrued and the
Company no longer held any Elemental Convertible Notes.

In addition, the Group acquired on-market 49,548,744 Elemental
Shares in a series of transactions conducted during the period from
28 April 2014 to 24 April 2015 for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately HK$61 million (exclusive of transaction costs). As at the
date of this annual report, the Group holds an aggregate of 70,404,268
Elemental Shares, representing approximately 18.44% of the entire
issued share capital of Elemental.

Details of the further acquisition of Elemental Shares were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 4 March 2015 and 17 April
2015 respectively.
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EXERCISE OF THE WORLD POINTER PUT OPTION

On 30 December 2013, World Pointer Limited (“World Pointer”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, exercised the option to sell
all of the 51% interests in the issued share capital each of the World
Pointer Group at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$25,000,000.
The completion of the sale and purchase of the option shares took
place on 4 July 2014 and the consideration was paid to the Company
on the same day.

Details of the exercise of the World Pointer put option were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 25 February 2011 and the
announcements of the Company dated 30 December 2013 and 4 July
2014 respectively.

FORMATION OF JOINT VENTURE ON FINANCIAL
LEASING BUSINESS

On 21 August 2014, the Company entered into the joint venture
agreement (“Joint Venture Agreement”) with an independent third
party, Joy Well Investments Limited (‘dWIL”), to form a joint venture
(“Joint Venture Company”) for the development and operation of
the financial leasing business. Upon completion of the transaction, the
Joint Venture Company will be owned as to 62.5% by the Company
and 37.5% by JWIL. The parties would invest up to an aggregate
RMB400,000,000 (approximately HK$504 million) into the Joint Venture
Company, of which RMB250,000,000 (approximately HK$315 million)
will be contributed by the Company according to its shareholding
percentage.

Pursuant to the terms of the Joint Venture Agreement, each of the
Company and JWIL shall subscribe for the new shares of the Joint
Venture Company and contribute in cash of the remaining RMB200
million to the Joint Venture Company on or before 15 December 2014
(or such later date as agreed by the parties). On 24 December 2014,
the parties have entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to
which they agree that the subscription and the contribution shall be
made on a date on or before 15 March 2015. Save for the aforesaid
change, all other terms of the Joint Venture Agreement remain
unchanged.
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On 13 March 2015, the parties have entered into a 2nd supplemental
agreement pursuant to which they agree that the subscription and
the contribution of the aggregate RMB200 million by the Company
and JWIL to the Joint Venture Company shall be made on a date on
or before 15 May 2015. Save for the change in the date of capital
contribution, all other terms of the Joint Venture Agreement remain
unchanged.

On 19 May 2015, the parties have entered into a 3rd supplemental
agreement pursuant to which they agree that the subscription and
the contribution of the aggregate RMB200 million by the Company
and JWIL to the Joint Venture Company shall be made on a date on
or before 30 June 2015. Save for the change in the date of capital
contribution, all other terms of the Joint Venture Agreement remain
unchanged.

Details of the above transaction were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 August 2014, 10 September 2014,
30 September 2014, 17 October 2014, 25 November 2014, 24
December 2014, 13 March 2015 and 19 May 2015 respectively and
the circular of the Company dated 5 January 2015.

THE EXTENSION OF LOAN REPAYMENT DATE

On 3 September 2014, Easy Prestige Limited (‘Easy Prestige”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
supplemental agreement with Mr. Yang Dongjun (“Mr. Yang”), a third
party independent of the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules), pursuant to which Easy Prestige agreed to
extend the repayment date to 31 December 2014 under the previous
loan agreement in relation to an advance amounted to HK$58,000,000
(the “Loan”) and adjust the interest rate to 1% per month in
consideration for the right to forfeit and cancel the convertible bonds
issued by the Company to Mr. Yang in case of any default in payment.
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On 8 January 2015, Easy Prestige, Mr. Yang and Dingyi Financial
Services Investment Limited (“DY Financial Services”) entered into a
second supplemental agreement, pursuant to which Easy Prestige had
assigned the Loan to DY Financial Services and agreed to extend the
loan repayment date from 31 December 2014 to 30 June 2015. Save
and except the above change in the lender and the extension of the
loan repayment date, all other terms and provisions of the previous loan
agreement and first supplemental agreement shall remain unchanged
and in full force and effect.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Loan has been repaid.

Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 21 August 2014, 3 September 2014 and 8 January
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 5 January 2015.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

On 30 October 2014, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PricewaterhouseCoopers”) tendered their resignation as auditors of
the Group. On 4 November 2014, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited has
been appointed as the auditors of the Group to fill the vacancy left by
the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Details of the above change of auditors were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 October 2014 and 4
November 2014 respectively.

GRANT AND EXERCISE OF SHARE OPTIONS

On 3 February 2015, the Board granted 132,000,000 share options
to the eligible employees/eligible participants as defined in the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 September 2012 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per share.

Details of the above grant of share options were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

On 30 March 2015, a total of 2,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and the shares were issued
on 1 April 2015.
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On 4 June 2015, a total of 1,800,000 share options were exercised at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and the shares were issued
on 9 June 2015.

On 18 June 2015, a total of 15,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per share and the shares were issued
on 18 June 2015.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$30 million in full, pursuant to which a total number of
136,363,636 conversion shares has been issued to that subscriber.

On 23 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$20 million in full, pursuant to which a total number of
90,909,090 conversion shares has been issued to that subscriber.

On 25 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$50 million in full, pursuant to which a total number of
227,272,727 conversion shares has been issued to that subscriber.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, food and
beverages, wine trading, loan financing, metal trading and financial
leasing, the Group will continue to explore other potential investment
opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the Company’s criteria.
This will not only strengthen our core business but also increase the
values of the Company’s owners.
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Management Profile
BEEEMGE T

Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LI KWONG YUK (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 53, joined the Company as executive Director and
chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Li is a businessman with over 12 years’ investment experience in the
highway industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
studied at Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981.
Mr. Li had worked on various investment projects in areas such as
infrastructure and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50%
shareholding in Wincon International Limited (“Wincon International”),
a company set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is
principally engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC.
He is a sole director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital
Investment Limited, the controlling Shareholder, and also directors
of various companies including Wincon International, Wincon Asset
Management Limited, Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi
Venture Capital (HK) Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited,
BEIMIRBE S E A KA R A A (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co.,
Ltd., being its unofficial English translation) and J& YT 218 & @& E
AHMRAA] (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its
unofficial English translation).
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MR. SU XIAONONG (“Mr. Su”)

Mr. Su, aged 51, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
on 27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China
College of Political Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or
management of various venture capital, private equity and investment
consultancy companies in the PRC, including worked at J#&3IIT E
B EEEBMRAAF (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management
Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English translation) from April 2003 to
November 2007. Mr. Su currently works at ;& 3I|  1 Bf 5 % 3% & AR
£ PR 2 8] (Shenzhen Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being
its unofficial English translation) and SFYI T R EEREE BR A A
(Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation). He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen
Dingyi Venture Capital L.P..

MR. CHEUNG SZE MING (“Mr. Cheung”)

Mr. Cheung, aged 46, joined the Company as executive Director and
chief financial officer of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung has accumulated over 20
years’ working experience from the international audit firm and public
listed companies. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Cheung is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was an
audit manager in an international audit firm.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. CHOW SHIU KI (“Mr. Chow”)

Mr. Chow, aged 47, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of working
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance areas. He
holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr. Chow is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has worked for various private and listed companies
at senior management level. He is currently the financial controller of
a renowned local travel agency and an independent non-executive
director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090).

MR. CAO KUANGYU (“Mr. Cao”)

Mr. Cao, aged 65, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking and
finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch for the
period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position was the
deputy president of the branch. For the period from February 1996 to
September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager of Bank
of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September 1999 to
September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen
branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the investment
banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to
September 2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive
director of JLF Investment Company Limited (stock code: 472), Huili
Resources (Group) Limited (stock code: 13083), Dongwu Cement
International Limited (stock code: 695) and Junefield Department Store
Group Limited (stock code: 758), all of which are companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. LI ZHONGXIA (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 31, joined the Company as a senior investment manager
on 3 November 2014. Mr. Li has over 6 years of experience in the
corporate finance and investment industry. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics and Management from University of Oxford,
and a Master of Science degree in Finance from London School of
Economics and Political Science. He worked at the corporate finance
department in ICBC International Capital Limited and Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Ltd. He also worked at client solutions department in Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited before joining the Company.

MR. LI XIAO XIAO (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 26, joined the Company as an investment officer on 12
February 2015. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting and Finance
from the University of Southern California. Mr. Li has accumulated
extensive working experience in accounting, corporate finance, and
investment management. He is a licensed CPA in the State of New
York and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a Senior Associate at a big four accounting firm,
specializing in private equities and hedge funds. Mr. Li also worked at
a Wall Street bank from May 2013 to January 2015, originating and
managing corporate banking transactions with a focus on emerging
markets.
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Financial Review
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE

The Group’s revenue decreased from the HK$43 million in 2014 to
HK$29 million in 2015, mainly due to the decrease in the interest
income from provision of loan financing and metal trading income. The
revenue contributed by World Pointer Group were reclassified as under
discontinued operations for 2015 and 2014.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin of the Group maintained at 86% (2014: 65%) this
year.

OTHER INCOME

Other income maintained stable at HK$6 million (2014: HK$7 million)
this year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs was increased to HK$5 million this year
as compared to HK$1 million in last year due to the full year operation
of the Beijing Restaurant. The administrative expenses was maintained
at HK$68 million (2014: HK$70 million) which comprised of the share-
based payment expenses, the legal and professional fees, travelling
and charter charge for exploring the investment opportunities.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment increased from HK$8 million last year to HK$10
million. This was mainly due to the additions of leasehold improvements
during the year.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held for trading investments increased by HK$85 million to HK$119
million this year because of the increase in the portfolio of the listed
investments in the securities trading business.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances increased from HK$41 million last year
to HK$194 million mainly due to the funds received from the loan
financing business and the repayment on early redemption of Elemental
convertible bond.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s net (liabilities) assets attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to HK$(284) million (2014:
HK$407 million), a decrease of 170% or HK$691 million when
compared with 2014. Such net decrease was mainly due to the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company during the year.

As at 31 March 2015, total debt to (negative) equity ratio was (0.38)
(2014: 0.14) and net debt to (negative) equity ratio was nil (2014: 0.04),
which were expressed as a percentage of total convertible bonds and
finance lease obligations and net convertible bonds and finance lease
obligations respectively, over the total (net liabilities) equity of HK$(214)
million (2014: HK$398 million).

BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s finance lease obligations amounted
to HK$2.8 million (2014: HK$4.2 million), of which around half of them
was repayable more than one year. The finance lease obligations are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and subject to fixed interest rate.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had pledged its assets with net book
value of HK$4 million (31 March 2014: HK$5 million) to secure finance
lease obligations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in HKD, RMB, USD and
AUD. Considering the exchange rates between these currencies are
relatively stable, the Group believed that the corresponding exposure to
RMB, USD and AUD exchange rate fluctuation were relatively limited.
The Group does not undertake any derivative financial instruments or
hedging instruments. The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign currency risk profile, continues to actively
monitor foreign exchange exposure to minimize the impact of any
adverse currency movement.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had no capital
commitments.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimize cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally placed
in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars
or Renminbi or Australian dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing
requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments,
the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate
level of gearing.

GOING CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had incurred net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$212,508,000 and
HK$284,214,000 respectively as at 31 March 2015. In the opinion of
the Directors, the liquidity of the Group can be maintained within the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period by taking
into consideration of the net current liabilities and net liabilities of the
Group were caused by the derivative financial liabilities of approximately
HK$618,633,000 which represented an option to entitle the holders to
subscribe for convertible bond to be issued with a maturity date within
the twelve months immediately after 31 March 2015. Such derivative
financial liabilities shall not have any cash outflow to the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rule”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2015
except for certain deviations disclosed below:

1. Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least
14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to all
Directors to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, certain regular Board meetings
were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to facilitate the
Directors’ timely reaction and expeditious decision making
process in respect of internal affairs of the Group. All Board
meetings, nevertheless, were duly convened and held in the way
prescribed by the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will use
reasonable endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision
A.1.3 of the CG Code in future. Adequate and appropriate
information are circulated normally three days in advance of
Board meetings to the Directors.

2. Code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code requires the nomination
committee of limited issuers to comprise a majority of
independent non-executive directors. Subsequent to the
resignation of Mr. Sun Dongsheng (“Mr. Sun”) on 30 April
2015, the Nomination Committee did not comprise a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules provides that every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Moreover, Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules provides that the audit committee of a listed
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members. Further,
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules provides that a listed issuer
must establish a remuneration committee which comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors. Subsequent
to the resignation of Mr. Sun on 30 April 2015, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors and the members of the
Audit Committee fell below the minimum number required under
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the required
composition of the Remuneration Committee fell below the
requirements under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules provides that every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Moreover, Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules provides that the audit committee of a listed
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members. Further,
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules provides that a listed issuer
must establish a remuneration committee which comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors. Subsequent
to the resignation of Mr. Cheng Xiusheng (“Mr. Cheng”) on
24 January 2014, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors and the members of an Audit Committee fell below the
minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and the required composition of a Remuneration
Committee fell below the requirements under Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

On 12 December 2014, the Board was appointed Mr. Cao
Kuangyu (“Mr. Cao”) as an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Following Mr. Cao’s appointment, the Company was
fully complied with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and
3.25 of the Listing Rules.
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4. Pursuant to Rules 13.46(2) and 13.49(1) of the Listing Rules,
the Company is required to publish the announcement in
relation to its preliminary annual results for the year ended 31
March 2014 (the “2014 Annual Results”) on a date not later
than three months after the end of the financial year of the
Company, i.e. on or before 30 June 2014; and despatch its
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “2014
Annual Report”) on a date not more than four months after the
end of the financial year of the Company, i.e. on or before 31
July 2014; and under Rule 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules, publish
the announcement in relation to its preliminary interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2014 (the “2014 Interim
Results”) on a date not later than two months after the end
of the period of the Company, i.e. on or before 30 November
2014. However due to the Company’s previous auditors,
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, required additional time to
complete their audit works on the voluminous documents and the
subsequent changes in auditors of the Company, the Company
was unable to publish the 2014 Annual Results and 2014
Interim Results and despatch the 2014 Annual Report within the
prescribed time limit as set out in the relevant Listing Rules. The
Board acknowledges that the delay in publication of the above
results and report had constituted non-compliance with Rules
13.46(2), 13.49(1) and 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

The 2014 Annual Results and the 2014 Interim Results had
announced on 12 December 2014 and the 2014 Annual Report
was despatched on 31 December 2014. Accordingly, the
Company has fully complied with the requirements of Rules
13.46(2), 13.49(1) and 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board has delegated
the power to oversee the daily operational matters of the Group to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and senior management of
the Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises six Directors and their respective roles are
set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu (appointed on 12 December 2014)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015)
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The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
“Management Profile” in this annual report. Their roles and functions
are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the business development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the confirmation,
the Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 March 2015.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all other
material matters. The Board held 5 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015. Individual attendance records of each Director at
the Board meetings are set out in the table on page 35 of this annual
report. Sufficient notice with agenda and the relevant information of the
Board meeting are given to all Directors. Minutes of the Board Meetings
and meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are drafted by the Company Secretary
and the final version of the minutes of the said meetings are sent to
all Directors for comments and record. The signed minutes of the
said meetings are kept by the Chief Financial Officer and are open
for inspection by any Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a
Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matters
will be dealt with by a Board meeting rather than written resolutions
and the Board will ensure that an adequate number of Independent
Non-executive Directors are involved in the consideration of the
relevant matters. Independent Non-executive Directors are encouraged
to take an active role in the Board meetings.
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RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”)
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. According to
the confirmations received from the Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year
ended 31 March 2015 in the following manner:
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Li Kwong Yuk - 4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Mr. Su Xiaonong is currently the Chief Executive
Officer. In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate
and performed by different person.

The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functions of the Board
and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for managing the businesses of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Under Bye-law 112.(A), at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office no later
than the third AGM since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee in order to maintain high
level of corporate governance standard of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu
Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Sun
Dongsheng. Mr. Sun Dongsheng resigned as Director on 30 April
2015 and also ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee. The
chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki,
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and

possesses

meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm
of the Company during one year after he ceases to be partner of the
audit firm.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
provide supervision over the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Group and to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts and the interim report and to provide advices and
comments thereon to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee met twice
with the auditors of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee were disclosed in the
“Terms of Reference of Audit Committee” which has been published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 29 March
2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls, risk
management systems of the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2015.
Committee is set out in the table on page 35 of this annual report.

Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao
Kuangyu and Mr. Sun Dongsheng, and two Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Su Xiaonong and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming. Mr. Sun Dongsheng
resigned as Director on 30 April 2015 and also ceased to be a member
of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee were
disclosed in the “Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee”
which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company on 29 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the model which is described in the code provision B.1.2(c)
(i) of the CG Code that the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meeting(s) during the year ended
31 March 2015. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 35 of this
annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference and the same has been revised in order to comply with the
relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
comprises one Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and Mr. Sun Dongsheng. Mr. Sun
Dongsheng resigned as Director on 30 April 2015 and also ceased to
be a member of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to, to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were disclosed in
the “Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee” which has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on
30 August 2013.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors and
recommended the Board on the adoption of the revised terms of
reference and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 35 of this annual
report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the fees paid/payable to the HE_ZT—hF=A=T—HILtFERN =
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as REZZERBEXM BN ZBAMEBROT

follows:

Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
REHE SHEOEETR)
Audit services - SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited %8 RS — {5k (BE) ertiEBMER AR 1,350

On 30 October 2014, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as R-_ZE—NFE+A=+H BERKKESME
the Auditor and SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the BB EZER B MR —mF+—A
vacancy on 4 November 2014 and to hold office until the next annual B EXPHM (BB SFMEBMERAFE

general meeting of the Company.

ZENEMUEZEREEEBREAR R TERERE

EREH -
ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENETEEKE ZHERE

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the individual attendance HE_Z—RAF=-A=-+T—HLEFEN TESF
record of the Directors for the Board meetings, the Board Committee REEZEEE B2 NIT—R1F=
meetings, the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 9 February ANBETzRFAFAS ((RREFAE]) MU
2015 and the Special General Meetings (“SGMs”) held on 31 EARIR—_E—NE+_A=+T—RAK=ZE—1%
December 2014 and 19 March 2015 respectively is set out below: FZATNBRTZEREREFIARE ([REEHIX

') 2B L FEREEINMT

Attended/Eligible to attend
BilifE/EREE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGMs
ENEEE B0 E = REZES

% EEREH LT L B BRETAR BREHAR
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 5/5 0/0 0/0 2/2 11 2/2
FRERE
Mr. Su Xiaonong 5/5 0/0 3/3 0/0 11 2/2
HRREE
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 5/5 0/0 3/3 0/0 11 2/2
R B EE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 5/5 3/3 3/3 2/2 11 2/2
FERELE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu (@ppointed on 12 December 2014) 2/2 1/1 2/2 0/0 0/1 0/2
ERTRE(R_FE—WES A+ _HRZEL)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015) 5/5 3/3 3/3 2/2 0/1 0/2

BRRAKE(R-FE-—RFHA=1HFE)
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognizing its overall responsibility in ensuring the system
of internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness, is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of the Shareholders and the assets
of the Group. The Board is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The internal control
framework also provides for identification and management of risk.

The Audit Committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the Group.
With the consideration of the findings and recommendations by the
Audit Committee, the Board has reached the conclusion that the
Group’s internal control system was in place and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”)
as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from an external
secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Mr. Cheung Sze Ming, an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rule, Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

RIGHTS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders may convene special general meeting of the Company
(the “SGM”) according to the Bye-Laws and the provisions as set out
in Section 74 of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition of Shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly, to convene the SGM. The requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the principal place of business in Hong Kong of
the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.nk or by mail to the principle place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F,,
Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders
are also encouraged to attend the AGM and the SGM and to put
their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to
the Shareholders in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to
attend the AGM and the SGM. The Chairman, chairmen of each of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the Auditor will attend the
AGM and respond to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner.
The procedures for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen
of the AGM and the SGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid
meetings.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

U)

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at www.dingyi.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a

website at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business

operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2015 analyzed by reportable segments are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
are provided in the Chairman Statement and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 60 and
61. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the year
are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out on page 65 and note 39(A) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders amounted to HK$nil. (2014: HK$nil).
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 22 to 24 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 31% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers accounted for 66% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for
10% of the Group’s purchases and the largest customer accounted for
37% of the Group’s revenue. None of the Directors, their associates
nor any Shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 58 (2014: 123) full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2015. Total staff costs amounted
to HK$19 million (2014: HK$32 million) for the year ended 31 March
2015. The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically
on the basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and
individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded
on a discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the Share Option
Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2015.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu (appointed on 12 December 2014)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015)

In accordance with bye-law 112.(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk,
the Chairman and an Executive Director, and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, an
Independent Non-executive Director, shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year ended 31 March 2015 and all of them
are still being considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance relating to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, none of the Directors
have an interest in any business constituting a competing business to
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

EENHFUERBE 2 ER

RBE-_Z-—RAF=A=+—HILVBRFER"
MEBEEENUAREXGEKGF ZEREKS
BT

EELRTRETRABZESEn

RZZE—RAF=A=1+—H XAR2REERFE
THRABRARAREEEEZE (EEREHR
HEGD ([BERBEGEH]) EXVE) 2 &K
AR D R EFH A B RIEE S KB E KD
EXVEPE7RFESD BAE AN R R Z P2 =
ExE (BRIEREE S RBAEGN 2 A BIGH
I RSIARIEHB 2R AR ) » MBI
NERERS R EKROIEB KR EATFE
ZELEMAZESRAR  IREZESTAZAXN
EARRNFI R ZEERABINT

REAFEBEREEBRG 2FR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Number of underlying capital of the
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total Company Nofe 1)
EARAT
ERITREZ
BAFA
EEpgs EL) EERYA HERGHE ag (Hit1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (‘Mr. Li") Interest of controlled 1,674,357,530 1,878,787,878 3,553,145,408
FhEBRE ([FEE]) corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
B EE RS (Bz2) (B1#3)
Beneficial owner 35,855,000 13,300,000 49,155,000
ExBEEBA (Note 4)
(Hit4)
3,602,300,408 109.01%
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Number of underlying capital of the
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total Company (Note 1)
AR
BRTRAZ
BREI
EEpng 54 EEREE HEROHE ay (Hizt1)
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner = 43,750,000 43,750,000 1.32%
HERELE EREEA (Note 5)
(Hizts)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming Beneficial owner - 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.36%
R GULAE ExBEBA (Note 6)
(Hizte6)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng Beneficial owner S 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.03%
(resigned on 30 April 2015) ExBEEA (Note 7)
BRALE (Bi#t7)
(RZF—L#FAF=1HET)
Notes: Wiat -

1.

Based on 3,304,640,624 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
March 2015.

These shares held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“WCIL”) as to
1,662,882,530 and Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”) as to
11,475,000. Each of WCIL and WAML is wholly-owned by Mr. Li. Pursuant to
the SFO, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these 1,674,357,530 shares.

These 1,878,787,878 conversion shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.33 will be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$620,000,000.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 19 April
2013 under the Share Options Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per
share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, 23,750,000 underlying shares granted on 19 April
2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 20,000,000 underlying
shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.477 per
share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, 7,000,000 underlying shares granted on 19 April
2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 5,000,000 underlying
shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.477 per
share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 26 April
2013 under the Share Options Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per
share.

R T —hF=H=+—HE%173,304,640,624
RARR L BARETE -

ZEBRMBEXKBEAREERAR ([KBEX])HF
B HF1,662,882,5300 1 kB KEEEEEFR
AR ([KBEE]) #HEHP 11,475,000 8% 15 © XS
BAPKBEESAHERERZERE - REES
MERE G - AR AR ZE1,674,357,5300% A%
1R A A o

551,878,787, 878 MR AR 10 1§ A BB I A & 48
T 574 %6620,000,0007T 2 AT AR B 5 B 12 91 20 2 iR
BEEREE0.33TT T AR E KRBT

FEREROGAEAABDR-_ZE—=ZFNA+LAR
IRAE AR AT BIRTT R B SR K0.375 TR H 2 B AR
-

ARG AARA R REBRESEIRE ZBR
# - 23,750,0000 iR MN T —=FM A+ 1B
RITFEEEFRB0.375L % H - 5% 20,000,0008% 48 78
BHOR-_E—HE - A= BIRTEESRAE0.477
TR -

ARG AARA R REBRESEIRE ZBR
# - 7,000,000 BEAR DR —=FMA+1H
RITEEESRAE0.375L %+ %5,000,0000% 48 78
BHOR-_E—AE - A= BIRTEESRAEE0.477
TR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in
the register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

BREXFTEREIN RZT—RAF=A=1+—8"
BEARAEERTIETRABRARRHEFE
AABEE (EEREFRMEGRGIEXVER) 2
iy HEARDEEFTREARBEESF KNS
GRBIEXVERET R E8D #BAE AN AR MBI T2
EAREIORR  RBEREBESF MG RHIF352
BRELHER AR RFE ZECMAZ ek
B RBAREE S LG IRD E 35215 8 TE L8k
ZIGFTR B CMAZ EEIRR  HBARBIFE

STRIME AR B LB R 2 R IORR

Y|

TERRZESEm

R-ZE-RAF=ZA=+t—RH REARFEEKE
BITHRABMRA THALIOEE (RRABEERH
T2TBABRIN) RARR B SARREAR D Pr
BBEACBRARAREES KB E KHIF336
FEEzERMAZERRRINT

RERXAEBREEBRG 25

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of substantial Number of underlying capital of the
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total Company (Note 7)
EARRTF
ERITRE
EER HERHG ZBAEDL
TERREEER L) £ EE By (Hfzt1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 1,662,882,530 1,878,787,878 3,541,670,408 107.17%
KEBER (Hit2) EREEA (Note 3)
(Hiit3)
Mr. Leung Chiu Beneficial owner 120,126,927 229,647,727 349,774,654
Rk 4+ EREEA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Through a controlled 6,715,000 - 6,715,000
corporation (Note 5)
FERAELEE (Hr325)
356,489,654 10.79%
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of substantial Number of underlying capital of the

Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total Company (Note 1)

EARRTF

ERTRA

EER HER 5 ZHAESL

TERREEER 54 ] £ e By (Hizt1)

Like Faith Global Investment Limited  Beneficial owner 221,272,727 31,500,000 258,772,727 7.83%
(Note 6) (f126) ERBBA (Note 7)
(Hi#7)

Mr. Li Tang Xu (Note 6) Interest of controlled 227,272,727 31,500,000 258,772,727 7.83%
FRBEE (Hi26) _ corporation (Note 7)
REEE R (Krit7)

Mr. Yang Dongjun Beneficial owner S 229,647,727 229,647,727 6.95%
BRELE EREEA (Note 8)
(Hi78)

Notes: it -

Based on 3,304,640,624 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
March 2015.

WCIL is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. Under the SFO, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk
was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying shares.

On 28 June 2013, WCIL entered into a subscription agreement with the
Company in respect of the issue of and the subscription for the convertible
bonds in a principal amount of HK$620,000,000 at a conversion price of
HK$0.33 per conversion share will be allotted and issued 1,878,787,878
shares upon full conversion of the convertible bonds. On 8 January 2015, the
convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 was subscribed
by WCIL and the remaining convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 as contemplated under the subscription agreement will be
subscribed by WCIL on or before 8 July 2015.

On 17 October 2012, Mr. Lei Chong entered into a subscription agreement
with the Company in respect of the issue of and subscription for the 2%
coupon convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$50,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.22 per conversion share. On 12 July 2013, Mr. Lei
Chong transferred his right attaching on the 2% coupon convertible bonds to
Mr. Leung Chiu. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds, a maximum
of 227,272,727 shares will be allotted and issued. In addition, 2,375,000
underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 19 April 2013
under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share.

These shares were registered in the name of Luckyhood Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mr. Leung Chiu. Under the SFO, Mr. Leung Chiu was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

R _Z—hF=H=+—HE3%173,304,640,624
BRARR L BIRFTE -

KBERMERIE KA ERA - REEARBEH
B 2992 58 A AR AR S D RARBIRR 19 P e
2 o

RZT—Z=ZFXA=Z+N\B KBERERAR]F]L
REWE N ERRRRE SRR G%A¥0.33
TLEITRBENEHERTIRRESFEBER R &3
171,878,787,878% I {5 2 7N & 8 & 78 620,000,000
TZABRES R-_E—AF—AN\B K284
75 #20,000,0007T 2 AJ AR E 5 B B kS & AN RE &
PRI B T T2 A% 5 A B 600,000,0007T
ZHTAMBRESFEHKEEAR-_T—HE+LA
NB R ZATRE -

R-T—=—F+A+tA FTHREEEARARIK
BRESRBERBRDEE02TTEITRREAELE
7 #650,000,0007T 2 2[E A] 2 R (B 5 5] LR IE W o
RIE—=F+A+-R FTRELECEZHEN2E
ARREFH 2R T R84 - RBEEE IR A R
BEH% TR RBEITRS227,272, 727818 5 © it
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Like Faith Global Investment Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Tang Xu. Under
the SFO, Mr. Li Tang Xu was deemed to be interested in these shares and
underlying shares.

7. These 31,500,000 underlying shares are share options granted by the
Company on 3 February 2015 under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price of HK$0.477 per share.

8. On 12 October 2012, Mr. Yang Dongjun entered into a subscription agreement
with the Company in respect of the issue of and subscription for the 2%
coupon convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$50,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.22 per conversion share. Upon full conversion of
the convertible bonds, a maximum of 227,272,727 shares will be allotted and
issued. In addition, 2,375,000 underlying shares are share options granted
by the Company on 19 April 2013 under the Share Option Scheme at the
exercise price of HK$0.375 per share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, are as follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Under the Share Option Scheme,

the Directors may grant

share options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible

Participants”) to subscribe for shares in accordance with the

provisions of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share
option.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9 February
2015, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 330,464,062
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company (i.e. 3,304,640,634 shares) as
at 31 March 2015.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, a total of 132,000,000 share
options were granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme, 2,000,000 share options were exercised and 1,500,000
share options were lapsed. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ approval
for the refreshment of scheme mandate limit on 9 February 2015, the
outstanding number of the shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 330,464,062, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company (i.e. 3,304,640,624 shares).

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year are shown below:
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REBE-_T—RFE=ZA=1+—RALFE AQA2
RARBE A AT 813 H A ££132,000,00017 BE A% 2 -
2,000,00017 A% #E 2. 171 12 1,500,000 FE AR 1 2
KB REBRRAR-_E—RF_ANAREEH
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RER REBBRESASIMBE O ZBREZZ
FHIEM TR :

Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise
Exercised Date of Validity price of
At Granted during Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share
Name or category 1 April during the year during during during 31 March  share share options
of participant 2014 the year (Note) the year the year the year 2015  options options HK$ per share
R R® BRE
—2-QmE RERTTHR RER Z2-1F  BRE BRE fTEE
SEANBZRER mA-H REARE (Hzt) RERZH RERKH N8 =A=t-8 HHAH BRE GREE
Executive Directors
HTEES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 13,300,000 - - - - - 13,300,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
FRERE —Z2-=F —I-=F
mA+1A mA+HBE
—T-N\E
mA+AR
Mr. Su Xiaonong 23,750,000 - - - - - 23,750,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
BRBLE 2% —B-=F
mA+1A mA+HEE
—Z-N\E
mA+/R
- 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477
02-02-2020
—Z-1% —T-1%
—A=R
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 7,000,000 - - - - - 7,000,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
REHEE =% —T-=F
mA+hA MA+HBZE
—T-N\E
mA+AR
- 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477
02-02-2020
—%-7% %1%
=HSH —R=HZ%
—T-%E
—AZH

REEEREAERAR
“E-REER
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Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise
Exercised Date of Validity price of
At Granted during Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share
Name or category 1 April during the year during during during 31 March  share share options
of participant 2014 the year (Note) the year the year the year 2015  options options HKS per share
R® R® BRE
—2-QmE RERTTHR RER Z2-1F  BRE BRE TEE
SEAREHER BA-R RERRY (Hizt) RERZH RERKH E¥fE ZA=t-B RitpH BRE GREE
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BIkUTES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - - 26-04-2013 26-04-2013 o 0.375
25-04-2018
|25 —F-=f% —F-=%
mA=+7A MA=Z+/ BZE
“E-N\F
mA-t+HA
Mr. Sun Dongsheng 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375
(resigned on 30 April 2015) 25-04-2018
BRA%E —2-=F —2-=f
(R=E-BFMA=1HEH) MA=+7~A MAZt+/~AZ
—E-N\F
mA-+RA
Sub-total 46,050,000 25,000,000 (1,000,000) - - - 70,050,000
et
Substantial Shareholders
TERR
Mr. Leung Chiu 2,375,000 - - - - - 2,375,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
R%4 —2-=% —T-=%
mA+hA mA+HEE
—2-N\%F
A+NR
Mr. Li Xuan 2,375,000 - - - - - 2,375,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
FEE4E —3-=% —2-=F
mA+1A mATHhBEE
—2-0\F
AtNR
Mr. Yang Dongjun 2,375,000 - - - - - 2,375,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
BRERE —2-=% —T-=%
mA+1A mA+HEE
—2-N\%F
A+NR
Like Faith Global Investment Limited - 31,500,000 - - - - 31,500,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477
02-02-2020
—$-8%
—A=H
Sub-total 7,125,000 31,500,000 - - - - 38,625,000
Nt
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Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise
Exercised Date of Validity price of
At Granted during Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share
Name or category 1 April during the year during during during 31 March  share share options
of participant 2014 the year (Note) the year the year the year 2015  options options HK$ per share
R® R® BRE
—2-QmE RERTTHR RER Z2-1F  BRE BRE TEE
SEAREHER BA-R RERRY (Hizt) RERZH RERKH E¥fE ZA=t-B RitpH BRE GREE
Others
Hit
Employees 4,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 3,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375
25-04-2018
E8 —2-=F —%-=f%
MA=+7BE MAZ+ARBEZE
—E-N\F
mA-+RA
Other eligible participants 33,875,000 - - - - - 33,875,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375
18-04-2018
HitABR2EA =% =%
mA+AR mA+HEE
“E-N\F
mA+AR
13,500,000 - - - (1,500,000) - 12,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375
25-04-2018
—Z2-=F —Z-=F
mA=+7:A MA=+/<AZE
—E-N\F
mA-+aA
- 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477
02-02-2020
“2-1% —T-1%
—A=R
- 70,500,000 - - - - 70,500,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477
02-02-2020
—Z-1% —Z-nf
—ZR=H —R=H%
- St 35
—AZH
Sub-total 51,375,000 75,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 124,375,000
et
Total 104,550,000 132,000,000 (2,000,000 - (1,500,000) - 233,050,000
E-Hy

Note: The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date Biat - RIDR IR TT(E B B AT 2 It 9T (B
on which the share options were exercised was HK$0.67, BE¥0.677T °

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the EEERERE RS (ZZ2—=FmA+N
date on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April 2013, H- 22— =FWA-Z+HAR-ZE—AHF_A
25 April 2013 and 2 February 2015, were HK$0.37, HK$0.37 and ZHR)ARRRRG KT ES B AEBRAEE0.37T
HK$0.46 per share respectively. P& #0.37 T M B #0.467T
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 28 June 2013, the Company as the issuer and WCIL, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, as the subscriber entered
into the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) in
respect of the issue of and subscription of the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$62,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) at the initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per conversion share
(the “Conversion Price”), approximately 1,878,787,878 conversion
shares (the “Conversion Shares”) and the warrants in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$155,000,000 (the “Warrants”) at the exercise
price of HK$0.35 per warrant share, a total of 442,857,142 warrant
shares (the “Warrant Shares”), respectively.

The Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, including the allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares
and the Warrant Shares under specific mandate of the Company, are
subject to the approval of the Independent Shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company.

On 24 April 2014, the Company and WCIL agreed in writing to extend
the long stop date to 31 December 2014 (the “Closing Date”). On
8 January 2015, the Company and WCIL entered into a letter of
extension to extend the Closing Date to 8 July 2015.

On 8 January 2015, the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 was subscribed by WCIL. On 8 June 2015, the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 was
subscribed by WCIL and the remaining Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$570,000,000 as contemplated under the
Subscription Agreement will be subscribed by WCIL on or before 8 July
2015.

Details of the Subscription Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 June 2013, 24 April 2014, 8 January 2015,
16 January 2015 and 8 June 2015 and the Company’s circulars dated
15 December 2014 and 2 March 2015, respectively.
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On 25 March 2015, R{EER CRY) MEBREAFR AT (Dingyi Bao
Yin (Shenzhen) Financial Leasing Limited®) (‘DY Bao Yin”), an indirect
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and JEI&ZHIEEHR
[R A 8] (Zhanjiang Xin Tai Investment Company Limited*) (“Zhanjiang
Xin Tai”), an indirect wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (the ultimate
controlling Shareholder of the Company), entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement”) in respect of the lease
assets (the “Lease Assets”), which are machinery and equipment
and vehicles, to be transferred and leased under the Finance Lease
Agreement. The lease consideration consists of the principal amount
of RMB7,870,000 (the “Lease Consideration”) and the annual lease
interest rate is 6.6125% for the period of 2 years and commencing
from 31 March 2015 and which will be paid by Zhanjiang Xin Tai in
four instalments on a six-month basis. Pursuant to the Finance Lease
Agreement, Zhanjiang Xin Tai has conditionally agreed to sell the Lease
Assets to DY Bao Yin at the transfer consideration of RMB7,870,000.

Details of the Finance Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 March 2014, Trillion Winner Investment Ltd (“Trillion”) as
the owner entered into an aircraft charter agreement (the “Aircraft
Charter Agreement”) with Dingyi Resources Limited (“Dingyi
Resources”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the charteree, pursuant to which Trillion agreed to provide and
Dingyi Resources agreed to hire the aircraft commencing on 1 June
2013 and ending on 31 March 2016 for the charter price of US$2,000
per flight hour (excluding all other costs and expenses shall be for
the account of Dingyi Resources in relation to hire an aircraft). The
transaction pursuant to the Aircraft Charter Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules as Trillion
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the controlling
shareholder, a chairman of the Company and an Executive Director.
Details of the Aircraft Charter Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Dingyi Resources paid the
aggregate of the charter price of approximately HK$809,000 (2014
HK$3,161,000) to Trillion pursuant to the Aircraft Charter Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transaction was entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (iii) in
accordance with the Aircraft Charter Agreement governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole; and (iv) have not exceeded the relevant
amount capped in accordance with the Company’s announcement
dated 31 March 2014.

The Auditor, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in pages 25 to 38 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect
internal and external communications by means of telephone, emails
and conferences or such other communication means which are
efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, we are able to minimize
physical travelling and printing.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and
benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the
individual performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory
provident fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees
with the aim to form a professional staff and management team that
can bring the Group to different levels of success.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest
service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking ways
to improve customer relations through enhanced services. Regarding
the securities trading and loan financing businesses, the Group has no
major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the
Group has maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure
their continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity
markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its
investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —
“FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES”.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2015.
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SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended
since 9:00 a.m. on 2 July 2014 pending the release of the
announcements of the 2014 Annual Results and the 2014 Interim
Results. An application has been made by the Company for resumption
of trading in the shares on the Stock Exchange with effect from
9:00 a.m. on 15 December 2014.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

The financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015

were audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WAL IZBED R &

iAo

Sthe‘ZOing

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 60 to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
26 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

EHE\E@R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z2-F—AF=H=1—HIFZ

2015 2014
—E—-HF —T-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#e&:5))
Continuing operations BREREER
Revenue LON 7 28,815 42,725
Cost of sales $H & AR (4,026) (15,151)
Gross profit EA 24,789 27,574
Other income H b Wz 9 6,010 7,159
Realised gain on the disposal of HERIEEREREZ
held for trading investments B 2R s 12,448 12,013
(Loss) gain arising from changes in fair value ~ H{EE&EREZ A
of held for trading investments FEEL L (BB K& (99,361) 829
Fair value gain on initial recognition of NS HAAAHREESREE
available-for-sale financial assets A EWE - 18,092
Gain arising from changes in fair value of MESREEZ ANE 24(),
derivative financial assets, net FHEL 2 WE  FE (i) & (iii) 1,728 2,830
Realised gain on derivative financial assets MESHMEECE#ER
Wz 24(i) 4,412 =
Loss arising from changes in fair value of MESRMBECANEEZD 24(iv),
derivative financial liabilities E4ZEE 31(i) (618,633) (84,385)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EemEE 2 RE
financial assets BB (2,656) (30,323)
Write off of goodwill arising on acquisition MW —ENB AR EE
of a subsidiary ZEE 36 - (5,817)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR W= 9,562 =
Selling and distribution costs HE RS HKAR (5,069) (1,118)
General and administrative expenses —REITHRER (67,967) (69,503)
Finance costs B A AR 10 (12,136) (15,547)
Loss before tax RELRIERE 11 (746,873) (138,196)
Income tax expense Fristi & A 13 (142) (1,466)
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ R EFELEEHKE 2
FEEE (747,015) (139,662)
Discontinued operations HIEREET
Loss for the year from discontinued RERIEEEEG 2
operations FEEE 14 (306) (907)
Loss for the year FEER (747,321) (140,569)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

afEEE
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=HA=+—HILFE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt BT T BT T
(Restated)
(s&&E5))
Loss for the year attributable to the owners KABEB AR FEEE
of the Company
— from continuing operations —REBELEER (724,207) (139,662)
— from discontinued operations —RERIEEEERS (156) (462)
Loss for the year attributable to the owners ARARHEEAEEFEEIR
of the Company (724,363) (140,124)
Loss for the year attributable to PR MR (N FEE B
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —RAEESEER (22,808) =
— from discontinued operations —RERIEEEER (150) (445)
Loss for the year attributable to FEEHt RS EIEFEBR
non-controlling interests (22,958) (445)
(747,321) (140,569)
Loss per share gRER 16
Basic and diluted loss per share FREAREEEE
(HK cents per share) (FREM)
— from continuing operations —REFELEER 21.915 4.471
— from discontinued operations —IRERIEEER 0.005 0.015
21.920 4.486
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EHEmkEtGESWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—F—AF=H=1—HIFEZ

2015 2014
—ZE—EHF —E-E
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEBSR (747,321) (140,569)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEHMEZEWA(EAR)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HERpEEN P EE B o
profit or loss: EH :
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AP EeREEL
financial assets N ERE 1,183 =
Exchange difference arising on translation of BMEBINEBREE
overseas operations PE 3 = & (1,233) (223)
(50) (223)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEHLEEBEALE (747,371) (140,792)
Total comprehensive expense for the year EBhEEFRaERMEE:
attributable to:
The owners of the Company ViN/NEIEFE DN (723,947) (140,347)
Non-controlling interests FEFE B 1 A A (23,424) (449)
(747,371) (140,792)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EHEFBRAE

As at 31 March 2015 R=-F—AF=H=+—H

31/3/2015 31/3/2014
—E-HF —E—OF
=A=t—-H =A=t—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment = K& iE 17 9,831 8,379
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18 65,839 23,226
Non-current deposits and EREBFLIES R
prepayments TEfTRIE 20 1,813 3,527
77,483 35,132
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 7,850 7,924
Debtors, deposits and FERER - FHIES R
prepayments TEfTRUIE 20 17,541 44,211
Loan receivables fEUE X 21 95,555 252,719
Convertible bond receivables & U AT $2 I 1B 5 22 - 70,713
Amount due from a related company U — M RE N RIRR 38 - 248
Held for trading investments BIEEBEHRE 23 118,945 34,158
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 24 1,728 5,684
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEY 25 194,020 40,725
435,639 456,382
Non-current assets classified DERFBIEHEEZ
as held-for-sale EMEEE 26 - 17,250
435,639 473,632
Current liabilities nREBAEE
Margin loans payable ERNRFSER 27 14,038 =
Creditors, deposits and accruals R FAEE X
TBREHA 28 10,979 12,116
Amounts due to related companies EREERRIBRR 38 311 3,933
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 24 618,633 -
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 2,743 2,504
Obligation under a finance lease A T EAE 29 1,443 1,385
648,147 19,938
Liabilities associated with non-current BEERSEARFEHE
assets classified as held-for-sale ZIERBEE 26 - 35,643
648,147 86x584
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EHMBRAER
As at 31 March 2016 R=-ZFE—A#F=H=+—H
31/3/2015 31/3/2014
—Z-8F —E-E
=A=+—-H =A=+—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M BT T BT
Net current (liabilities) assets B (AR EEFE (212,508) 418,051
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR (135,025) 453,183
Capital and reserves BARFHE
Share capital [N 30 33,046 33,046
Reserves i (317,260) 373,843
Equity attributable to the owners RATIEE AEMLER
of the Company (284,214) 406,889
Non-controlling interests FET2 I 1 4 2 69,899 (8,987)
Total equity Fl (214,315) 397,902
Non-current liabilities IRBEME
Obligation under a finance lease R E T B RIE 29 1,373 2,816
Convertible bonds AR E S 31 77,917 52,328
Deferred income tax liabilities REFSHRAE 32 - 137
79,290 55,281
(135,025) 453,183

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Kwong Yuk
=R
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
aEHEZEBE R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ—-F—AF=HA=+—HILFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDARAEAREE
Convertible
Capital bonds - Retained
redemption Share Other Exchange  Investment equity profits Non-
Share Share reserve option reserve i { ion | lated controlling
capital premium (note i) reserve (note il reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total
EARE TRE
i Hibfife EXKD REERE ®H-#8 REEF FEsH
B& RAEE (&) BRERE (BizEi) i i BaRHE  (RHEE) B8 33 a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR  AETR BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2013 R=F-=fmA-A 23751 25,249 14 - 5,021 146 - 69,676 74,898 198,755 8,542 190,213
Loss for the year FEE#R S - - - - - - - (140,124) (140,124) (445) (140,569)
Other comprehensive expense ~ FEEMGAER
for the year
~ Exchange differences arising -REBNEBELE
on translation of overseas HER
operations - - - - - (223 - - - (223) - (223)
Total comprehensive expense FEGEABRER

for the year - - - - - (223 - - (140,124) (140,347) (445) (140,792)
Issue of ordinary shares upon RERETLER

placing (note 30) (H3%30) 4,750 137,750 S S S S S S S 142,500 - 142,500
Transaction costs attributable to ~ BLERETEBRME( 2

issue of ordinary shares upon RHMA

placing - (1,548 - - - - - - - (1,548) - (1,548)
Issue of convertiole bonds - eouity 17T ATAREH - Bk

conversion component (note 31) &5 (MizE31) - - - - - - - 147,172 - 147,172 - 147,172
Issue of shares upon conversion  REHRFATRREHFE{TR

of convertible bonds (note 30) 3 (Hi5¥30) 4545 148,925 - - - - - (108,424) - 45,046 - 45,046
Recognition of equity-settled share R 1E 25 & B AR AER

based payments vested FRER (HzE34)

(note 34) = = S 15,311 = = o o o 16,311 o 15,311
Share options forfeited R - - - (86) - - - - 86 - - -
At 31 March 2014 WZF-mE=A=1-R 33,046 310,376 14 16,225 5,021 m - 108,424 (65,140) 406,889 8987 397,902
Loss for the year FEEA - - - - - - - - (124,363)  (724,363) (22,958)  (747,321)
Other comprehensive expense for  EEH itz A &

the year

- Fair value gain on avallable-for- ~ ~ At HESRHEE L

sale financial assets AR ERE - - - - - - 1,183 - - 1,183 - 1,183

- Exchange differences arisng ~~ —~AB BN EBEEZ

on translation of overseas EXEE
operations - - - - - (767) - - - (767) (466) (1,233)
Total comprehensive expense FEERERAE

for the year o o o o o (767) 1,183 - (14363 (123047 (3424 (147.871)
Changes in ownership interests in -~ 1A~ B & 2 FiEHE

a subsiclary that do not resultin -~ B# 28 (TEEHAL

aloss of control (note 43) BE) (343) - - - - 211 - - - - 211 03,173 93,384
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) &M B2 A (HzE37) - - - - (5,021) - - - 5,021 - 9,137 9,137
Issue of convertiole bonds - equity 17 A] AR % - Ea R

conversion component (note 31) &85 (MizE31) - - - - - - - 5,644 - 5,644 - 5,644
Recognition of equity-settled BREREEIRG AER

share based payments vested B (Hi334)

(note 34) - - - 26,989 - - - - - 26,989 - 26,989
Share options exercised (note 34)  E{THERBUE (Fi34) - 290 - (290) - - - - - - - -
Share options forfeited R - - - (7 - - - - 177 - - -
At 31 March 2015 W=F-8F=R=1-H 33,046 310,666 14 (41,747) 211 (844) 1,183 114,068 (784,305) (284,214) 69,899 (214,315)
Notes: B3
0] Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares 0] BABERHBREEEARABIERIIREBS 2

repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable reserves of the BERDZEE
Company.
(i) Other reserve represents the gain on deemed partial disposal of subsidiaries (iiy HthEBERZS——FR_T—NFWEEHL

that do not result in a loss of control in 2011 and 2014.

R G AN L ENBAR 2R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z2-F—AF=H=1—HIFZ

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before taxation from continuing BRI REBELCEER
operations 518 (746,873) (138,196)
Loss before taxation from discontinued RIEAT R B R EET
operations B8 (306) (886)
(747,179) (139,082)
Adjustments for: ERBENT®IE:
Bank interest income RITH B R (723) (1,267)
Effective interest income on convertible AR E H FE I RIE 2
bond receivables B B M= (3,229) (2,012)
Finance costs & A 12,136 15,547
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREETE 3,728 2,787
Fair value gain on initial recognition of IR HEE SR
available-for-sale financial assets BEZADERR - (18,092)
Loss arising from changes in fair value of MTEEMBREZANE
derivative financial liabilities BEEL 2 ER 618,633 84,385
Gain arising from changes in fair value of MESMEECANE
derivative financial assets, net FoEE W FE (1,728) (2,830)
Realised gain on derivative financial assets MESMEECEER
Wz (4,412 =
Loss (gain) arising from changes in fair BIEEEREZAAE
value of held for trading investments SHELEE
(%z) 99,361 (829)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR Z WS (9,562) =
Reversal of debtors, deposits and RIS 2 FEUAR K -
prepayments previously written off FiHke MIENFRIE
el (1,744) -
Loss on disposals of plant and equipment BERE M&E BB 121 =
Write off of goodwill arising on acquisition i 58 U B — R B BB R )
of a subsidiary EEZEE 36 - 5,817
Impairment loss on loan receivables ERER 2 REEIE 2,335 =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEECMEEZ
financial assets B 18 2,656 30,323
Share-based payments expenses VARR D BER 2 IR 26,989 15,311
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZ2—FE-—AF=A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—MF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E BT T BT T
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEE 2
working capital KERSME (2,618) (9,942)
Decrease in inventories HFE R 164 122
Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits BURER FHZE R
and prepayments TEfRTFRIER A (3G 40) 1,865 (17,688)
Decrease (increase) in loan receivables FEWEFOR A (38 40) 154,829 (250,598)
Increase in held for trading investments BIEEBEHRE LN (184,148) (8,064)
Increase in creditors, deposits and accruals BERER - FARESR
TR B RN 761 4,667
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEREEE R RIBRR ()
related companies 3 hn (3,622) 3,931
Increase in amount due to non-controlling FE AT FE 2 ) 1 A 2 BR 3R
interests o - 3,482
Cash used in operations EEAZRS (32,769) (274,090)
Overseas income tax paid BEINTER (41) (34)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARRETBH RS TR
ACTIVITIES (32,810) (274,124)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Repayment on early redemption of a RAIER AR ES 2
convertible bond B 22 74,868 12,095
Interest received B F B 723 1,895
Subscription of a convertible bond RETBRES 22 - (68,597)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HENBARIELER
subsidiaries BemAFRE 37 12,979 -
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HEHE K
equipment Fr1S 308 32 =
Purchases of available-for-sale financial BEHEESREE
assets (44,086) (85,457)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of a WiE—HBARIEER
subsidiary WE ML FE 36 = (4,328)
Purchases of plant and equipment BERE LB (3,146) (2,931)
Settlement of derivative financial PTESRTALHE
instruments 10,000 -
Repayment to related companies BEBEQRIE (520) =
NET CASH FROM (USED) IN INVESTING RE (AR)RETEZ
ACTIVITIES HEFHE 50,850

REEEREAERAR
“E-LEER




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=+—HIFEZF

2015 2014
—E—EF —EF—mF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E BT T BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Repayment of bank loan IRITERZER - (776,335)
Interest paid BT HLE (729) (5,276)
Repayment of obligation under a BEREAEZER
finance lease (1,385) 671)
New bank loan raised HIERITER - 776,335
Repayment to non-controlling interests EE IR 2= SRR (312) =
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in a HER—BWBARZ
subsidiary (without losing control) B0 HE 2 2 FT1S FIE
(I 8 5K AT Il ) 43 93,384 -
Advance from related parties KEBBAEALTZEK 3,136 =
New margin loans raised EETEREBBSEN 14,038 =
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares REERBETERER 2
upon placing FriS I8 30(i) - 142,500
Payment of transaction costs attributable to R ERETEBRERG
issue of ordinary shares upon placing RGEA 25K 30(i) - (1,548)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible RBETARERESRZ
bonds FR1S3RIR 31 20,000 100,000
Payment of transaction costs attributable to B BRRESEERS
issue of convertible bonds AR 2 A 3R 31 (174) (212)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMETBHREE RS ER
ACTIVITIES 127,958 234,793
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRASEEYIEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2)F8 145,998 (136,654)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REOA—RAZBEER
AT 1 APRIL REZEEY 40,725 189,922
Decrease (increase) in cash and cash HEESEESBFBEHE
equivalents of disposal group classified as FRBEEZRER
non-current assets held for sale ReEEWR D (38mn) 26 9,277 (9,277)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates EREEH T8 (1,980) (3,266)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=B=+—-HBzHBEER
AT 31 MARCH HEEEY 194,020 40,725
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHM B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ—-F—AF=HA=+—HILFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a listed
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention
Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited, a private limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
carrying out loan financing business while the activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had
incurred net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$212,508,000 and HK$284,214,000 respectively as at 31
March 2015 and incurred loss of approximately HK$747,321,000
for the year ended 31 March 2015. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the liquidity of the Group can be maintained
within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period by taking into consideration of the net current liabilities and
net liabilities of the Group were caused by the derivative financial
liabilities of approximately HK$618,633,000 which represented
an option to entitle the holders to subscribe for convertible bond
to be issued with a maturity date within twelve months after 31
March 2015. Such derivative financial liabilities shall not have any
cash outflow to the Group.

— AN RERA M ERES

SEEEREARART ([A27])) A —ME
EHARAR - EEREFMK I ZBR AR
AAmlzadMRERREESEE 21
345 Bl A& Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda )2 & 7 {1 7 /&
BIRERES WA KB27TEB2708E - A1
RAZBROREBEABBERIMBRAG (&
BT Lo

ARREEBKTEARERRRAA (RHE
BRAHEEMKILZAABRAR)RE
ARAZBERREERRE]

RARZ EBEBR AR EIER RETERR
BER METBEWBRARZEKD 2R
BifsE42 o
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e EEIAR
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212,508,0007T } 7% #284,214,0007T & & &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=+—HIFEZF

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to
the carrying amount and reclassification of assets and liabilities
that might be necessary should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and Interpretations
(“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
Hong Kong Levies
(IFRS Interpretations
Committee)
(‘HK(IFRIC)") — Int 21

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
that qualify for offset, the application of the amendments has had
no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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R RERZFETAHARESHT R
RZOHABIBBEXRBBEL BEXRTE -

RESEREBRAA
ZE-REER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& Bk A 75 0 S Bt Rt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEZF

2.

72

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 36 RECOVERABLE
AMOUNT DISCLOSURES FOR NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 36 require
disclosures on additional information about the fair value
measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets
is based on fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount is fair value less costs of disposal, an entity shall disclose
the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement of the asset or cash generating unit is categorised
in its entirety. The Group is required to make additional
disclosures for Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

° a description of the valuation techniques used to measure
the fair value less costs of disposals. If there is any change
in valuation techniques, the fact and the reason should also
be disclosed;

° each key assumption on which management has based its
determination of fair value less costs of disposal;

° the discount rates used in the current and previous
measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is measured
using a present value technique.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
directors of the Company consider that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 36 has had no material impact on the
disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PART 9 OF HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation during the financial year. As a result,
there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE&E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
- 2012 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011
- 2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012
- 2014 Cycle?

Disclosure Initiative?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (‘FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described below:

R EGE &S
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE
FERFTE] REIERT B BN B WmE
R (BB BHREEL]) &
BB R RHERD] (8

ERAMBRELERNE (ZF— T
E)ELRITAE (&)
BB ISR LR FEo% (—E—ME) 2

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

76

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application

permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of

HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on

the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a

reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
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78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) |dentify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions
for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’ which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The
amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss. The
amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to
the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets

are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting, if
the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or
an intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify
that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of
such compensation is not required.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 CYCLE (Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 CYCLE (Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT TO HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption
of the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5. Besides, the
amendments also clarify that changing the disposal method does
not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement
in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the
fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT TO HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond
rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere in
the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report. The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS 38
CLARIFICATION OF ACCEPTABLE METHODS
OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods
for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be
rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

ii) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS 38
CLARIFICATION OF ACCEPTABLE METHODS
OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 27 EQUITY METHOD
IN SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. As
a result of the amendments, the entity can choose to account for
these investments either:

i) at cost;

ii) in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

i) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should
be applied retrospectively.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 27 EQUITY METHOD
IN SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As the Company does not have any investment in associates or
joint ventures, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10 AND HKAS 28
SALE OR CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS
BETWEEN AN INVESTOR AND ITS ASSOCIATE
OR JOINT VENTURE

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
and associate. An investing entity is required to recognise the
gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture or associate
in full. An investing entity is required to recognise the gain or loss
arising from selling or contributing assets that does not constitute
or contain a business to a joint venture or associate only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that joint venture or
associate.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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E-AF=A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where and
in what order information is presented in the financial statements.
Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into consideration all
relevant facts and circumstances, how it aggregates information
in the financial statements, which include the notes. An entity
does not require to provide a specific disclosure required by
a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a
list of specific requirements or describe them as minimum
requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when
their presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s
financial position and financial performance respectively. Entities,
in which they have investments in associates or joint ventures,
are required to present the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method, separated into the share of items that (i)
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i)
will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the understandability
and comparability of its financial statements when
determining the order of the notes; and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE (Continued)

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material impact
on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3.

E-AF=A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FBEETHR

(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has:

° power over the investee;

° exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° the ability to use its power over the investee to effect the
amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Rk E &
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE
}fZ =] H+Ey
B8 (4)

GOODWILL (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=1+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Gain or loss on the disposal of held for trading investments is
recognised on a trade date basis when the relevant transactions
are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension obligation

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=1+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that services.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FBEFHE @

(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held for
trading, and a financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 6c¢.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors and deposits, loan receivables, convertible
bond receivables, amount due from a related company and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends on available-
for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial market
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors and
deposits, loan receivables, amount due from a related company,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of debtors and deposits, convertible bond receivables, loan
receivables and amount due from a related company, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a debtor, deposit,
convertible bond receivable, loan receivable or amount due
from a related company is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including margin loans payable, creditors,
deposits and accruals, amounts due to related companies and
obligation under a finance lease are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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E-—AF=A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bond issued by the Group

The component parts of the convertible loan notes issued by
the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain
in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
CRGL R R e

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FBEFHE @

(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bond issued by the Group (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bond subscribed by the Group

Compound financial instruments subscribed by the Group
comprise convertible bond that can be converted to shares of the
issuing party at the option of the Group where number of shares
to be obtained does not vary with changes in their fair value.

The option component is recognised at fair value as derivative
financial assets. The loan receivable component of a compound
financial instrument is recognised initially at the difference
between the fair value of the compound financial instrument
as a whole and the fair value of the option component. Any
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the option
component and loan receivables component in proportion to their
initial carrying amounts.

In subsequent periods, the loan receivables component —
unlisted bond of the convertible bond is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The option component
of the convertible bond is re-measured at fair value at each
reporting date with any change of fair value being recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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E-—AF=A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

FESITHER (8)

$EITE (@)

fTEEmIT A

mEIﬂW%TE AMERZARME
W HERE ﬁ%%izaﬁﬁi%%
BoUEATAY AABEEENAHHENS

KRENEFER

%mﬁ%
EENEERDRSRE A NENEmX
@mﬂﬁé%&%%%&zﬁﬁIﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ERBABIERLCOHBERT S B
B AEETERIERZEREE-

ERIERATHMEE EENKREE
BRI N R R ERD AR AR S AR
FER W ST Rt e RIRIBR 2 M2 HH
EZHEERETER

—B=

AEBEENEE TR  BUS 3R H X
HERTBRAB - BURERZERBEZR
HEADNHENREZZENERRARE

7

o ©

b a]

EASHEADHRENEHEMELERBER
CERRETE) AEKERAUELFTFREEE
% REBEBEARA AR AIARER
Bt



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROVISIONS (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE
ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF THE
GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE
ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF THE
GOODWILL ABOVE) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern consideration

Although the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities at
the end of the reporting period, the Group manages its liquidity
risk by monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid cash to meet the Group’s
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The directors of
the Company consider that the Group has no significant liquidity
risk. Details of which are set out in note 1.

Business combination

As disclosed in note 36, on 1 January 2014, the Group acquired
100% equity interest in JE R ZEZZEHKERAF. On the
same date, a deed of trust agreement was entered between the
Group and three former shareholders that they held the equity
ownership of 1t R =2 ZE R E IR A 7] on behalf of the Group.
The legal title of bR ZEZEKERAF were maintained
by the former shareholders until the legal title of it R E =
EHAEPR AT is transferred to the Group. The directors of the
Company assessed whether or not the Group has control over
bt F 2= E 8 ER AR based on whether the Group has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of 1t = fi =2
BEZHRAER AR uniaterally. In making their judgement, the
directors of the Company considered the Group’s absolute size
of holding in It R EEEKER A G and the legal opinion
from the PRC legal advisor in respect of the legality of the sale
and purchase agreement and the deed of trust agreement. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the
Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of 1t
R = EEL AR AR and therefore the Group has control
over It R EEZERER AL
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group
assesses annually the residual values and the useful lives of
the plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such a difference may impact the depreciation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 6c¢, the directors of the Company use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of
the instrument. Other financial instruments are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The
estimation of fair value of unlisted equity instruments includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note 6c¢.
The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in determining the
fair value of financial instruments.

Valuation of share options

As mentioned in note 34, the Group has granted share options
to directors, employees and consultants. The directors of the
Company have used an option-pricing model — Binomial model
(the “Binomial Model”) to determine the total fair value of the
options granted. The option pricing models require the input of
subjective assumptions, such as risk free rate, dividend vyield,
expected volatility and expected terms, is required to be made
by the directors of the Company in applying the Binomial Model
(note 34). The fair value of options granted for the year ended
31 March 2015 determined using the Binomial Model was
approximately HK$26,989,000 (2014: HK$15,311,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining
whether a decline in fair value has been significant or prolonged.
In making this judgement, the historical data on market volatility
as well as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account. The Group also takes into account other factors, such
as industry and sector performance changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow of the investee. As
at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets was approximately HK$65,839,000 (2014:
HK$23,226,000) net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$32,979,000 (2014: HK$30,323,000).

Impairment of loan receivables

The policy for impairment of loan receivables is based on
assessments of the recoverability of each debtor, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history.
Impairments arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgment and estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the loans receivable and doubtful debt expenses in the
year in which such estimate has been changed. As at 31 March
2015, the carrying amount of loan receivables was approximately
HK$95,555,000 (2014: HK$252,719,000) net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,335,000 (2014: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
subsidiaries and to make adjustments to the capital structure in

light of changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group is represented by total
deficit of approximately HK$214,315,000 (2014: equity of
approximately HK$397,902,000), obligation under a finance
lease of approximately HK$2,816,000 (2014: HK$4,201,000)
and convertible bonds of approximately HK$77,917,000 (2014:

HK$52,328,000).

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL

EARKREE
AEEERHAREE DHREENEE
BALNNRFELEEE FABEBELE
BREFEHBRAFMEALR - AEE
BERRE L FEARTE.

AEETE R R BT RN R ERHLEARREIL
BELBERRABCKARNFTE MAKEKR
HIfE QR AKAR @2 B RHEN
REELAE

REBZEREETABEMBELD
214,315,000 (ZZ — O F : AR OB
#397,902,0007T) R & T ERE LB
2,816,0007T ( = F — /0 4 : & #4,201,000
J0) R AR ESH LB 77,917,0000C (=ZF
— P04 : B 152,328,0007T ) KR ©

TRTA
(A) £RMIEMNES

INSTRUMENTS
2015 2014
—ZE-1F —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Financial assets EREE
FVTPL REHEZEAR
— Held for trading investments —FREEBEHRE 118,945 34,158
— Derivative financial instruments — TSR IE 1,728 5,684
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESREE 65,839 23,226
Loans and receivables (including cash B R EBGRIE
and cash equivalents) (BREEekBEEEY) 305,459 408,677
491,971 471,745
Financial liabilities cRAE
At amortised cost B SH A 106,061 72,578
Derivative financial instruments THEEMmT A 618,633 =
724,694 72,578
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, debtors and deposits, loan
receivables, convertible bond receivables, amount due from
a related company, derivative financial instruments, held
for trading investments, cash and cash equivalents, margin
loans payable, creditors, deposits and accruals, amounts
due to related companies, obligation under a finance lease,
derivative financial liabilities and convertible bonds. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate convertible bonds (including
the subscribed convertible bond and the issued
convertible bonds), obligation under a finance lease
and short-term bank deposits.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate short-term bank
deposits carried at prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in HK$ and RMB base deposit
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s bank balances denominated in
RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 1% (2014: 1%) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
1% (2014: 1%) and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,678,000 (2014: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$97,000) resulting
from the changes in the interest income from bank
deposits.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

SR T E (%)
(B) €mEAMEE B M REBUER (#)

™ 5 EL kR (#)
(ii) P B

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most
transactions mainly settled in HK$. As at 31 March
2015, the Group holds available-for-sale financial
assets, held for trading investments, bank deposits
and convertible bond denominated in Australian dollar
(“AUD”) and bank deposits denominated in Renminbi
(‘RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the Group’s functional currency. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging the potential foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than

AEBIENBEBLREERD H
K*BT/“Q%IKLA/%% SCENIS
E-RAF=ZA=+—H &%&E
FFrA R (R EZ
AHHESREE FIEEER
B IRITER R AT AR E F A K&
NARE (AR HEZ R
FTHE 3R o HINE [ B 7 & R 2R 7 3
RPACHEREELBBEIALIE
AEENRER 2 ERHERE
B o RS B I M ANEE SR IR
N ERE S ERINERR &
P B Z BB INE &

o
TR

//

RBERR NEBAREBE
BEB EBMEEBEAINZE

the respective functional currencies of the relevant BEITEvcESEERAGBZER
group entities at the end of the reporting period are as (ERUNE
follows:
Assets
BE
2015 2014
—EB-HF —T-MEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
AUD BIT 88,483 123,066
RMB AR¥ 3,061 3,466
Others Hih 220 5,259
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to AUD and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 1% (2014: 1%) increase and decrease in
the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, RMB or HK$, against the relevant foreign
currencies. 1% (2014: 1%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 1% (2014: 1%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss for the year where the respective
functional currencies (HK$ or RMB) strengthens 1%
(2014: 1%) against the relevant foreign currency
(AUD, RMB or other currencies). For a 1% (2014: 1%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$
or RMB) against the relevant foreign currency (AUD,
RMB or other currencies), there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year
and the balances below would be negative.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &I A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) ¢WEAMEER WRBEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) ™ i5% BB (%)

(i) Foreign Currency risk (Continued) (i) op % JE B (48)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

BREE DT ()

Effect on profit or loss

HERZEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Strengthen against AUD by 1% HRITHE% 739 1,028
Strengthen against RMB by 1% HAREHE1% 26 29
Strengthen against other HEMEBHEI%
currencies by 1% 2 44

The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk in
relation to the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts at 31 March 2014 (2015: nil). The sensitivity
to foreign currency risk arising from the foreign
currency forward contracts has been determined
based on the reasonably possible change in the
forward exchange rate between AUD and USD. For a
1% strengthening in USD against AUD, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2014 will
be increased by approximately HK$47,000 (2015:
nil). If AUD had been weakened against USD in an
opposite magnitude and all other variables held
constant, the potential effect on the results would be
equal and opposite.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iij) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position either as available-for-
sale financial assets or held for trading investments.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will

consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been increased/
decreased by 1% (2014: 1%) and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$993,000 (2014:
HK$285,000) resulting from the changes in fair value
of these listed investments.

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets had been
increased/decreased by 1% (2014: 1%) and all
other variables were held constant, the investments
revaluation reserve as at 31 March 2015 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$658,000
(2014: HK$232,000).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
financial assets, held for trading investments, debtors and
deposits, loans receivables, subscribed convertible bond,
amount due from a related company and cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Amount due from a related company is continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparty, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Where necessary, provision
for impairment loss is made for estimated irrecoverable
amounts.

In respect of loan receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s loan financing
business, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
financial background and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of the loan receivables arising from the Group’s
loan financing business, 88% (2014: 29%) of the total gross
loan receivables as at 31 March 2015 was due from the
Group’s largest customer and 88% (2014: 78%) of the total
gross loan receivables as at 31 March 2015 was due from
the Group’s five largest customers for the Group’s loan
financing business.

In respect of the debtors arising from the Group’s metal
trading business, 100% (2014: 100%) of the total gross
debtors as at 31 March 2015 was due from the Group’s
largest customer.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan receivables is mainly in Hong Kong, which
accounted for 100% (2014: 100%) of loan receivables as at
31 March 2015 and 2014.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for debtors is mainly in the PRC, which accounted
for 100% (2014: 100%) of debtors as at 31 March 2015
and 2014.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk is
under control since the management exercises due care in
granting credit and checking the financial background of
these customers on a regular basis.

The credit risk on held for trading investments, available-
for-sale financial assets, subscription of a convertible bond
and liquid fund is limited because they are deposited with
financial institutions or investment counterparties with high
credit quality and the Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk. The Group had
net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$212,508,000 and HK$284,214,000 respectively as
at 31 March 2015 and incurred loss of approximately
HK$747,321,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015. The
Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and readily realisable marketable securities.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by the
management of the Company. As details in note 1, the
directors of the Company believe that the Group will be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

SR T AR (%)
(B) £REAMEER MW REBEEK (&)

BB ER (@)

Liquidity tables Bt %
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within  but less than  but less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
RERY BA—F BAWE AFRRE
R-FR EIREE BIREEF mEBE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
As at 31 March 2015 R-E-EF=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiTEERBERE
Margin loans payable ERRESER 14,048 - - 14,048 14,038
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER FARE R
BRER 10,979 - - 10,979 10,979
Amounts due to related companies ERBEERRARR 311 - - 311 311
Convertible bonds and interest payable AR (&5 K 1 FI| & 2,000 22,000 102,167 126,167 77917
Obligation under a finance lease RERERE 1,527 1,400 - 2,927 2,816
28,865 23,400 102,167 154,432 106,061
More than More than
Ondemand  one year but two years Total
or within less than  but less than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REFE HiB—F BAmME  AFRAS
R—ER  ELR@mE  EIRRE MEEE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties HTELBEE
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER TARE LERER 12,116 - - 12,116 12,116
Amounts due to related companies EREEARRR 3,933 - - 3,933 3,933
Convertible bonds and interest payable IR ES R ERFIE 2,000 2,000 104,167 108,167 52,328
Obligation under a finance lease BERERE 1,527 1,527 1,400 4,454 4,201
19,576 3,527 105,567 128,670 72,578

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @@t T E (®)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) EHMBRRARABRBZAN
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED BE5tE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIHESHMT RO IRHEE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end M ERERERRZAAEE
of each reporting period for recurring measurement, WRBEAEESHBRERARER
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which BRIBEENBERFEF—BANEZE=H
the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s Bl o

accounting policy.

31/3/2015
—E-Ef=HA=+-AH
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E— R E=HRE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL REZREAREREZ
CREE
Derivative financial assets MEEMEE
- Listed equity call options — FRARESE 1,728 - 1,728
Held for trading investments BIEEERE
- Listed equity investments —ERARE 89,035 29,910 118,945
Available-for-sale financial assets TAtHESREE
Listed equity investments FHREERE 65,839 - 65,839
Total R 156,602 29,910 186,512
Financial liabilities at FVTPL REZRBRAREREZ
CREE
Derivative financial liabilities MEEHMEE
— Unissued convertible bonds — KRBT B ES - 618,633 618,633

RESEREBRAA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

6. =T E @

(€)

EHEBERRRABREZLAR
B E (&)

(Continued)
31/3/2014
“ZT-ME=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R E&R F=H7 ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL REZREAABEREEZ
tREE
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE
- Foreign currency forward —INEERHEY
contracts - 5,588 - 5,588
- Convertible bonds —AaRES
— conversion option —REEREDN
component - - 96 96
Held for trading investments HIEEERE
— Listed equity investments —EIRARE 34,158 - - 34,158
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets
Listed equity investments oA E 23,226 = = 23,226
Total R 57,384 5,588 96 63,068

Held for trading investments with carrying amount of
approximately HK$29,910,000 (2014: nil) has been
suspended for trading as at 31 March 2015. The fair value
of those held for trading investments was determined by
using market approach which were transferred from Level
1 to Level 3 accordingly. There were no other transfers
between level of fair value hierarchy in current and prior
years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. R TE (&)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) EHHMBRRARABRZAN
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED BEFFE (®)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair R-ZE—NE=A=+—H A@<R
value measurements of financial instruments as at 31 TEZE =R AREFEFMAGEE
March 2014 as set out below: B R s A BURE S T -
Valuation technique Key input
fEER I FEBABE
Foreign currency forward contracts Discounted cash flow Future cash flows are estimated based on

forward exchange rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period) and contract forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties
SN R ER A A BREERE AKBREREDIRBFERER (RE®RE

R TR RHE X ) k& AR BAE
K WRAIRBREZEAHFHEER

B 2 BRIR R HTIR
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements on RZE—RAFR-_FT—NF=A
financial instruments as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 as set =+—H BEsMIEZE=ZHRR
out below: REFEZERFHINWOT
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—HRE=HA=1+—H

Significant unobservable

Valuation technique Key input inputs
& (B i FEBMARE EXTAHRREABE
Unissued convertible bonds Binominal option Volatility levels Volatility levels of 53.11% (note a)
pricing model
REATAIMRES “IHEAMEEEEN  OREKT BIEKFES3.11% (Fiska)
Held for trading investments ~ Market approach Volatility levels Volatility levels of 48.00% (note a)
HIEEERE %A R I8 KT BRIk F48.00% (FisEa)

RAEEEREERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2014

6. =T E @
(C) EHHBRIARAERZLAA

B £ (@)

R-ZZE—HF=ZA=+—H

Significant unobservable

Valuation technique Key input inputs
fhE FTEWARE EXTUBEGAHE
Convertible bonds Binominal option Volatility levels Volatility levels of 45.45% (note a)
— conversion option pricing model
component
ARRES - HIERELY —HEAPREEEN  KEKTE BIRIKF45.45% (FisEa)

The fair value of convertible bonds — conversion option
component and unissued convertible bonds were
determined by using binominal option pricing model that
consider the possible future prices for each period in time
as well as the respective probability. The fair value of held
for trading investments were determined by using market
approach that reflects recent market value of comparable
companies with similar business, adjusted for differences in
nature, scope and location of the business.

Note a: A slight 5% increase in the rate of volatility levels used would
result in a significant increase in the fair value measurement
of the convertible bonds — conversion option component,
unissued convertible bonds and held for trading investments
and vice versa.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. Rt TH (®)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) G BRRERABRZLAN

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on
recurring basis:

B £ (@)

NREUEEEETE=RIIAE
EZHK:

Convertible
bonds -
conversion Held for Unissued
option World Pointer trading  convertible
component put option investment bonds Total
AEKREH— World Pointer BEEE AET
RBERERG RHEE RE UERES &t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
BETT BETL BETRL BT BETT

At 1 April 2013 R-E-—#mA—A o7 25,000 - (0,047) 15,080
Derecognition upon exercise of BA1T1EWorld Pointeri i 24

World Pointer put option R IERR - (25,000) - = (25,000)
Settlement upon early redemption of REBRAMARESRREN

convertible bond 27 - - - (27)
Issue of convertible bond BITAARES 2,854 - - 94,332 97,186
Loss arising on changes of fair value ANEZHELZER (2,758) - - (84,385) (87,143)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-Z-—ME=A=1+—HEK

—T-mFEMA—A 96 - - - 96

Transfers into of Level 3 BREE=L7 - - 29,910 - 29,910
Recognition of unissued BRABITURRES

convertible bonds - - - (536,601) (636,601)
Settlement upon early redemption of REEETRREFKEN

convertible bond (96) - - - (96)
Loss arising on changes of fair value ANEZHELEZER - - - (82,032) (82,032)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=ZA=+—H - - 29,910 (618,633) (588,723)

The above loss arising on changes of fair value for the
year ended 31 March 2015 recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$84,673,000 (2014: HK$2,758,000) and
HK$618,633,000 (2014: HK$84,385,000) are included in
“(Loss) gain arising from changes in fair value of held for
trading investments” (2014: Gain arising from changes
in fair value of derivative financial assets, net) and “Loss
arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial
liabilities” respectively in consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

LR EBEERNERCEEZE—1F
A=+ HLFEZANEEZS
ELE 2 E B B%84,673,0007T (=
T — P04 : B #2,758,0007T ) M B
618,633,0007T ( = — P 4 : /5 #&
84,385,0007T) * D BIET A G HHIER K
ZIBEEBEREZ ANBEEHEELY
(BR)WE] (ZT—NFE:TEEH

RITTEERAEC AN EEBEL L
BiEl A
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair value
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that fair value of other non-current assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as the impact
of discounting of non-current assets is not significant and
the non-current liabilities are at amortised at market interest
rates.

7. REVENUE 7.
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of food and
beverages, metal trading income, interest income from provision
of loan financing and dividend income from held for trading

SR T AR (%)

(C) G BRRARABRZAN
B E (&)

ARAREER R ARNEHIHNE
REHHERRANABRER AL Z
HpptemEESRABEZRAER
HABZARERE - ARREER
B BRFERBDEENEZFEYTE
REIFERBEETIRT SN -
BWHMFERDEERABEAAERE
FREERS -

LN

RER WABEREERHE TBEER
A RHEEFBEZMERARFEEER
BZBRBBAZBN -AEEREFELE

investments during the year. The following is an analysis of the EB WA 2T
Group’s revenue from continuing operations:
2015 2014
—ZE—1F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue represents amounts received and WAIER BT E W R
receivable from: EW &5
Sales of food and beverages BHIHE 10,698 1,258
Metal trading income TEBEREWA 643 14,700
Interest income from provision of REEREE 2 F B WA
loan financing 17,474 26,473
Dividend income from held for FEEEREZRBWA
trading investments - 294
28,815 42,725

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by segments is set out in note
8.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable segments are identified and reported in the manner
consistent with internal reports to the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-marker (executive
directors) in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance
of the reportable segments based on the revenue and profit/
loss presented. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group has five reportable and operating segments (i)
securities trading business; (i) trading of wine business; (i) food
and beverages — restaurant business; (iv) loan financing business
and (v) metal trading business, which the segments of (i) and
(v) is newly operated during the year ended 31 March 2014.
Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, loan financing business
was identified as a reportable and operating segment because
loan financing business is one of principal activity of the Group
and the chief operating decision-maker believes that such
reporting better reflects the segments’ performance based on the
respective nature of relevant operating units.

An operating segment regarding food and beverages — restaurant
and bars business in Hong Kong was discontinued during the
year ended 31 March 2014. The segment information reported
on the following for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014
does not include any amounts for these discontinued operations,
which are described in more details in note 14.

8.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #EZ _-F—AF=H=4+—HIFFZ
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 March 2015

PR E R (8)

TEBRARESR
AEBREFELLER 2 WMAREELE
BBz OMWMT

F2HRE

BE-E—HFE=ZA=+—HILEE

Food and
Securities ~ Trading of beverages - Loan Metal
trading wine  restaurant Financing trading
business business business business business Total
% BE BH- EX £ ]
BEEY BEEY BREEH MEER BEEEHR Fobe)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External revenue SREBIRA - - 10,698 17,474 643 28,815
Realised gain on the disposal of HERFEEREZEERKEA
held for trading investments 12,448 - - - - 12,448
Segment profit (loss) SEFE (R (90,485) - 1,002 15,139 (2,794) (77,138)
Interest income FIEWA 3,952
Finance costs BERAK (12,136)
Loss arising from changes NMESBEABRAREERS
in fair value of derivative EAZE Té!
financial liabilities (618,633)
Gain arising from changes MTHEEMEEZRIAEED
in fair value of derivative EEz W 58
financial assets, net 1,728
Realised gain on derivative MTEemMEEZEZRYR
financial assets 4,412
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AT HESMEE ZRERE
financial assets (2,656)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz E 9,562
Unallocated corporate income F VNG ON 314
Unallocated corporate expenses PNl NI EY (56,278)
Loss before tax BB AT B 1B (746,873)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER (&)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) DEWAREE (&)
Year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_ZT—NF=A=1+—AH1LFE
Food and
Securities Trading of  beverages - Loan Metal
trading wine restaurant financing trading
business business business business business Total
B BE EH— B kil

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  EETT  A%TR BT A%TR  BETI

Revenue WA
External revenue SN 294 = 1,258 26,473 14,700 42,725

Realised gain on the disposal of HEBEEEREZEERKE

held for trading investments 12,013 - - - - 12,013
Segment profit (loss) PEFNE(FR) 12,673 = (7,331) 26,473 (4,738) 27,077
Interest income FISHA 3,279
Finance costs BEKAE (15,547)
Loss arising from changes MTESRBBEZANEEHES

in fair value of derivative ZEE

financial liabilities (84,385)
Fair value gain on initial recogniton ~ A ERAEHESHEE LD

of avallable-for-sale financial REMRE

assets 18,092
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] & & Bl & & 2 B EEE

financial assets (30,323
Gain arising from changes in fair MESREEZ ANERSES

value of derivative financial W FE

assets, net 2,830
Unallocated corporate income bl NI ON 3,880
Unallocated corporate expenses VNG (63,099)
Loss before taxation BRIRpIERE (138,196)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &%= —

8.

E-—AF=A=1—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, interest income, exchange gain/loss, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, loss arising from changes in fair value
of derivative financial liabilities, fair value gain on initial recognition
of available-for-sale financial assets, impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial assets, gain arising from changes in fair value
of derivative financial assets, net, realised gain on derivative
financial assets, finance costs, depreciation of certain plant and
equipment. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision-maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segment:

DA (#)

TEBAREE (®)

KBS @ﬁﬁ%ﬁ$%lz@#ﬁ%m
B (S EABT sESFTIL ) - D AEFIE,EiEE
DEBRBZFE ELEZEBERE MYES M
RRITHER BEEHH - FBMA  EHK
=/ R LEHNBARKE TEEMmE
BZARBEEHEEZEER BRI H
HESHMEEZ ANBEWE AIEHE SR
BEZHEBE TEEREEANEER
EEZEEFE - TESRMEE D ERIK
HOBMERN ETHRERIBEIE -E
ENRERBEFTGHME R EZLER
REZWMzEH-

)

THEEREE
REBZEENABRERLEEDEZD
T

2015 2014
—E—RF —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Segment assets PEEE
Securities trading business BLEEBEER 118,945 34,158
Trading of wine business BIEEEEK 7,250 7,250
Food and beverages — restaurant business BR—BEEET 3,731 4,422
Loan financing business ERmEERS 95,555 252,719
Metal trading business TBEEXES 9,053 17,842
Total segment assets DEEEMLRE 234,534 316,391
Assets relating to discontinued operations B IHR SRR B BE = 17,250
Unallocated corporate assets Ao RBIEE 278,588 175,123
Total consolidated assets EHEEHE 513,122 508,764

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HFEEFR (#\)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PHEERERE (@)
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—yE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
(Restated)
(&)

Segment liabilities PEEE

Securities trading business BLEEEED 14,038 1,047
Trading of wine business EIRE B EE - =
Food and beverages — restaurant business BR—BEES 5,624 7,186
Loan financing business EXRBEER - S
Metal trading business TBEEEK 13 24
Total segment liabilities nEBEES 19,675 8,257
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations 4R MR EXEEHEZ AR - 35,643
Other unallocated liabilities B Ry G 707,762 66,962
Total consolidated liabilities EHEaBAE 727,437 110,862

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSERREMASBERHOEERMS :

allocating resources between segments:

PEEEANEREREN R (FTHE
ke AfthESmEE - ETHFD
BE MFENKER  BRATRRES &
W—HERERRER ITESREER
ReRReFEDHRI) R

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than o
certain plant and equipment, available-for-sale financial
assets, certain deposits and prepayment, convertible bond
receivables, amount due from a related company, derivative
financial assets and cash and cash equivalents; and

BERBESEERENE (B TFL
BeREFER BABEQRRRK
EHIFSERAE TTESRARE BT
ST B E - AR EAE R ATRAE
RSN o

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other °
than certain deposit and accruals, amounts due to related
companies, current income tax liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities, obligation under a
finance lease and convertible bonds.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HioaEER
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_Z—HEF=A=1+—HLEFE
Continuing operations FHEREER

Amounts included in the R EHRNEIEERS T
measure of segment profit o BERTAZEE:
loss or segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets ~ JERBEERE (FBIE
(other than available-for-sale AEHESBEE)
financial assets)

Depreciation of plant and BEREENE
equipment

Loss arising from changes in RIEEEREZANERD
fair value of held for trading EEZER
investments

Impairment loss on loan EUERREESSE
receivables

Reversal of debtors, deposits TR 2 R R
and prepayments previously e RBHTEER

written off
Amounts regularly provided to  FEIREFEFBLERTE
the chief operating decision- ERENEFER

maker but not included in the BEIHFEEAER
measure of segment profit o WRFAZEE:

loss or segment assets:
Interest income FIEMA
Finance costs BAKAE

Income tax (credit) expense FIEH (E2)FAX

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z -F—AF=H=+—HILFE
DERE R (4
Hitt 5 BEF (40)
BE_T-NF=A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Continuing operations (Continued) BEREER (1)
Food and
Securities Trading of  beverages - Loan Metal
trading wine restaurants financing trading
business business business business business  Unallocated Total
&5 B 8- % ka
BEEL BEEL BB HEEK BEEY KA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

qu ENENELBRL

Amounts included in the

measure of segment profit or PRBERTAZER:
loss or segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets ~ FERBEERE (TR
(other than available-for-sale ARLESRHEERSER
financial assets and non- BENECERBEE)

current assets classified as
held-for-sale) - - 3,306 - 107 5,712 9,125

Depreciation of plant and

BERRERE

equipment - - 188 - 11 601 800
Write off of goodwill arisingon i 4eiE —RIM B A A

acquisition of a subsidiary EEZEE = = 5,817 = = = 5,817
Gain arising from changes in BEBEREZANEEY

fair value of held for trading EEz W

investments (829) - - - - - (829)
Amounts reqularly provided to  TEHREFEEL %/?&ﬁ%

the chief operating decision- R EHEFER

maker but not included in the BREIHBEER

measure of segment profit or WRAAZEE:

loss or segment assets:
Interest income FIBHA - - - - - (3,279 (3,279
Finance costs RMERR - - - - - 15,547 15,547
Income tax (credit) expense FEH (Be)RX (89) - - - - 1,555 1,466
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION iﬁ’,Eﬁ*ﬂ
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the REB s EBEMRBEERFPEAREM

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing

operations from external customers is presented based on the

location of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-

current assets (excluding available-for-sale financial assets and

those related to discontinued operations) is presented based on

the geographical location of the assets.

(ThE]) -

BRAREERGINIEP 2 IFBEEEBIW
AZBRIRCEFEHES| - BAAEE 2
FRBEE (TEREAIHLEESREE KE
RIESE X BARE) c BRHREERMEM
BAUBZ -
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ZE-REER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
CRGL kR ek

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DREER )
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued) & &R ()

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEF WA FREEE
Year ended
BEUTRELFE

31/3/2015 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2014
—E-REF —T-mE “Z2-1% —E-mF
=A=+t-H =ZA=+—-A =A=t—-H Z=A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT

Hong Kong B 17,474 26,767 9,272 8,690
PRC e 11,341 15,958 2,372 3,216
28,815 42,725 11,644 11,906
The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 AEBREBEE-Z—RAF R —NF=A
March 2015 and 2014. S +—HLEFEYEATBOEHE-
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FHEFTEEFHNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing REMEFEZZFIRA ((EREEKALZ
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FEBIB10% ) 0T ¢
2015 2014
—Z—-8fF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Customer A’ BEPEA 10,580 15,684
Customer B’ ®FEB N/A 3 A 8 4,659
Customer C? =PC? N/AT 33 F 8 14,700
1 Revenue from loan finance business i REERBMEEB 2 WA
2 Revenue from metal trading business e RKEeBEEEBZHBA
g The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total g HEBATEAREE 2 BRATRI10%IA

revenue of the Group

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfblis
2015 2014
—ZE-I1F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Sub-underwriting commission (note) DEEME (M) - 3,877
Effective interest income on convertible WA RRES 2 BEEFEBA
bond receivables (note 22) (HI5E22) 3,229 2,012
Reversal of debtors, deposits and S AT 2 EUER R
prepayments previously written off 7R & RIE N IR E 1,744 -
Bank interest income RITH B 723 1,267
Others HAh 314 3
6,010 7,159
Note: The amount represented sub-underwriting commission income Wit ZeBERBE-_T—NOF=A=+—AH1t
received for acting as a sub-underwriter for the right issue of China FEARBERT (—HREBBIMEHZ
Merchant Bank, a company listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, RNE) ZEREES BEEMKERZ 5 B HA
during the year ended 31 March 2014. WA -
. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAEACA
2015 2014
—B-HF —T—lF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(1&EF)
Continuing operations FEREEL
Interest on bank borrowings and ERBRITEERRBSERAE
margin loans payable 587 5,183
Effective interest expense on convertible AIRRES 2 BERF SR
bonds (note 31) (HMI5E31) 11,407 10,271
Interest expenses on a finance lease MEME M ERXT 142 93
12,136 15,547

RESEREBRAA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

11.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before taxation from continuing operations has been arrived

11. BRI RIEE

FERKEEBZBRABEREHNERTIE

at after charging: 15 :
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Directors’ and chief executive’s EERFETHAEMNS
emoluments (note 12) (MzE12) 7,701 10,377
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and EMETINA(TBEESR
chief executive’s emoluments) FETBRAEMS) 5,583 2,293
Share-based payments expenses AR BERARHE X
(excluding directors’ and (TBEEER
chief executive’s emoluments) FTETHRAEMNE) 1,017 1,696
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIRTE FFT B K
(excluding directors’ and (TEEESEK
chief executive’s emoluments) FEBITBRAEME) 127 57
Total staff costs B TR ALLEE 14,428 14,423
Amount of inventories recognised as an EHRARAXcFESHE
expense 4,026 15,151
Impairment loss on loan receivables ERER 2 RERE 2,335 =
Auditors’ remuneration % HAD B & 1,350 1,450
Depreciation of plant and equipment BELEEITE 3,291 800
Operating lease payments in respect of HEAENFETREEME 2
leasing of premises under LM E R
minimum lease payments 8,915 2,742
Exchange loss I 4 &8 2,894 458
Share-based payments expenses granted to &% T EAR 2 LARS 1D A E B 3
consultants (note) M () 20,741 5,537

Notes: It represents share options granted to external consultants in exchange

for services rendered to the Group. Please refer to note 34 for details.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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B HMBREMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #EZ_—F—AF=A=+—HIFFE
12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERFBTRABZHMAKL
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EEZM=
EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S A) EERFETHAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and EXNIENARAREZEEREZTR
chief executive of the Company are as follows: ABEZBZMESIT:

Emoluments paid or receivable REAERARARK
in respect of a person’s services HWBRAES
as a director, whether of the Company PRt 2 iR M E 5k
or its subsidiary undertaking iz #Me
Executive Director: BTEE:
Li Kwong Yuk TRE
Su Xiaonong HER
Cheung Sze Ming REFH
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUYFHTES
Cao Kuangyu (appointed on ERT(R=T—NF
12 December 2014) +ZAt=HEZ#H)
Sun Dongsheng BRA(RZZ2—AF
(resigned on 30 April 2015) A=1+RHET)
Chow Shiu Ki s

SEEEREERAT
—E-REEH
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EFENRFBITHRAB ZFHBAK
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ BE Z2M& (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S A) EERFETBRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#®)
2014
—T-EE
Retirement
Salaries benefit  Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme payments
fees benefits contribution expenses Total
VAR &
Hek BRI itz
0k EA R BEIGS D1 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABETT BT BETT BETT
Emoluments paid or receivable REAERARARK
in respect of a person’s services HWBRAES
as a director, whether of the Company PRk 2 FR% M E 17 5k
or its subsidiary undertaking sz M
Executive Director: BTES:
Li Kwong Yuk EyE - 162 21 2,283 2,466
Su Xiaonong kR = 401 30 4,077 4,508
Cheung Sze Ming REFE - 1,300 15 1,202 2,517
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES:
Cheng Xiusheng BEE(RZF—NF
(resigned on 24 January 2014) —AZTHEHE) 100 = = 172 272
Sun Dongsheng BREFA 120 = = 172 292
Chow Shiu Ki REE 150 - - 172 322
370 1,863 66 8,078 10,377

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
paid by the Group during the two years ended 31 March
2015. No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to the directors and chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2015.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=F—AF=H=+—HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2014: three directors), details of whose emoluments are
set out above. The emoluments paid to the remaining three
(2014: two) highest paid individuals are as follows:

12. EFNFEITHAB ZFHIAK
EBE WM& (&)

(B) BEExM=
RAERBHATRERE (ZF—N
FZRBEE REMeZHBEHRT
mE-XHFHT=HR(ZT—WEF:
MA)BRBHFALTZHEMT :

2015 2014

—g-H5F —T-nF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREYEAF 1,137 1,115
Share-based payments expenses AR BER 2 R HAX 1,017 236
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIREFET SR 30 30
2,184 1,381

The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: two) highest
paid individuals fall within the following bands:

HT=R(ZFT—0F WMB)&RSFH
AL 2Z2HMEI D R TIIEBE

2015 2014

—E-HF —ET—mF

Nil - HK$1,000,000 7 — 7 1,000,0007T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 711,000,001 7T —

7 #1,500,0007T 1 =

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the two
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

RBE-_T-AFE-_FT-—NF=A
=+—BI-MEFEHE AEERE
A& ATIME - ERERSIIA
AN S B R e 22 R - SR (E AR BEES
fhfE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZ=F—hF=H=4+—HIFEF

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTISTE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Current income tax EHEH
Hong Kong BH 27 2,466
Overseas NERIN 252 =
279 2,466
Over-provision in prior years RBEFE BB
Hong Kong BH -